Unrestricted Document Pack

APOLOGIES Committee Services
Tel. 01621 875791 /876232

Council Chamber 01621 859677

HEAD OF PAID SERVICE’S OFFICE
HEAD OF PAID SERVICE
Richard Holmes

01 July 2019

Dear Councillor
You are summoned to attend the meeting of the;
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE on TUESDAY 9 JULY 2019 at 3.00 pm

Please note that the hearing will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER. MALDON
DISTRICT COUNCIL OFFICES, PRINCES ROAD, MALDON.

To consider an application for a Premises Licence, under the provisions of the Licensing Act
2003.

A Briefing for Members will not be held unless specifically requested. If clarification is
needed or there are issues regarding the Hearing, procedural issues or any legal matters,
please telephone Committee Services to arrange this.

We ask that Members ensure they arrive at least 15 minutes prior to the Hearing to agree the
Chairman.

A copy of the agenda is attached.

Yours faithfully

Head of Paid Services

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP COUNCILLORS R G Boyce MBE
Mrs P A Channer, CC
M F L Durham, CC
Mrs M E Thompson

Please note: Limited hard copies of this agenda and its related papers will be
available at the meeting.

(Members are reminded that the Sub-Committee comprises of three Members and therefore one
Member will be asked to stand down provided three other members called to the meeting attend
and can sit on the Sub-Committee).



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



LICENSING ACT 2003 - HEARINGS OF THE LICENSING SUB-
COMMITTEE AIDE MEMOIR - PREMISES LICENCE

The Chairman of the Hearing will open the Hearing and explain that the Sub-Committee’s
role is to determine applications and other matters under the Licensing Act 2003. He will then
introduce Members and Officers present.

1. A brief outline of the application will be given by the Licensing Officer.

2. The Chairman of the Hearing will then outline the procedure to be follows. He should
ensure that all representations, witness statements and hearing papers (by stating what they
are) have already been read and that there is no need to repeat these. Should there be any
late documentation in support of a representation or application, it may be introduced with
the consent of all parties.

3. All people present to identify themselves by name and address and who they represent.
4. The Applicant to make an opening statement.

5. The Applicant to call witnesses.

6. Any person calling a witness must not ask leading questions of him/her, i.e. by

phrasing a question in such a way that the answer is suggested in that question.

7. Each Responsible Authority and/or Interested Party (or their spokesperson) will take turns
(in an order to be determined by the Chairman) and may make an opening statement and
may then call witnesses until every party has been heard.

8. Members of the Sub-Committee may ask questions to elicit information from any party at
any time during the Hearing.

9. The Hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the Members of the Licensing
Authority. Cross examination of applicants, witnesses and persons making representations
shall not be permitted unless it is considered to be required in order to properly consider the
matter to be determined.

10. Each Responsible Authority and/or Interested Party (or their spokesperson) then makes
closing statements in turn.

11.  The Applicant then makes a closing statement.

12.  The Chairman to then deal with issues arising from any person excluded from the Hearing
and to ask if everyone has said what they want to say.

13. Members of the Sub-Committee should then discuss the evidence and representations
made before reaching their decision. All parties (except the Committee Clerk and if
requested the Legal Advisor to the Sub-Committee) will be asked to leave whilst the Sub-
Committee Members make their determination. Alternatively, the Members of the Sub-
Committee may retire to another room.

14. Where required, the Sub-Committee will announce its determination at the conclusion of
the hearing and will give its reasons for it.

15. In any other cases the determination will be given within five working days (beginning with
the day on which the hearing was held).

Note: Any reference in these Procedure Notes to an Applicant, Responsible Authorities or Interested
Parties includes a person who may be representing them.



Suggestion for Chairman’s introduction at the commencement of the Hearing.

‘Good morning and welcome to the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee of the Maldon
District Council.

We are sitting today under the Licensing Act 2003 to hear and determine applications made
under the Act.

I am Councillor and | have been appointed Chairman for this meeting.

The other Members are Councillors and

The notes of this meeting are being taken by Tara Bird who is on my left.
The Legal Advisor is Mr Simon Quelch and the Licensing Officer is Ms Lacey Latimer

Ms Latimer will now introduce the matter that is before us today.’

THE CHAIRMAN WILL NOW FOLLOW THE AIDE MEMOIR FROM POINT 2



AGENDA
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 9 JULY 2019
1. To appoint a Chairman for hearing
2. Chairman's notices (please see below)

3. Apologies for Absence

4. Disclosure of Interest

To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, other
Pecuniary Interest or Non-Pecuniary Interests relating to items of business on the
agenda having regard to paragraphs 6 — 8 of the Code of Conduct for Members.

(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interest as soon
as they become aware should the need arise through the meeting.)

5. Licensing Act 2003 - Application to Review Premises Licence - Village Tandoori,
11 High Street, Southminster, CMO0 7AA (Pages 7 - 130)

To consider the report of the Director of Service Delivery, (copy enclosed).

NOTICES

Sound Recording of Meeting

Please note that the Council will be recording any part of this meeting held in open session
for subsequent publication on the Council’s website. At the start of the meeting an
announcement will be made about the sound recording. Members of the public attending the
meeting with a view to speaking are deemed to be giving permission to be included in the
recording.

Fire

In event of a fire, a siren will sound. Please use the fire exits marked with the green running
man. The fire assembly point is outside the main entrance to the Council Offices. Please
gather there and await further instruction.

Health and Safety
Please be advised of the different levels of flooring within the Council Chamber. There are
steps behind the main horseshoe as well as to the side of the room.

Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV)
This meeting is being monitored and recorded by CCTV.

Page 5




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5

REPORT of

DIRECTOR OF SERVICE DELIVERY
to

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
9JULY 2019

LICENSING ACT 2003 - APPLICATION TO REVIEW PREMISES LICENCE -
VILLAGE TANDOORI, 11 HIGH STREET, SOUTHMINSTER, CM0 7AA

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1  The Committee is requested to consider an application for a review of the premises
licence for Village Tandoori, 11 High Street, Southminster, CMO 7AA on the grounds
of one of the licensing objectives, namely the prevention of crime and disorder,
having regard to the representations received and the requirement to promote the four
licensing objectives.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That the Licensing Sub-Committee determines the application for a Review of a
Premises Licence taking into consideration the options that are available as detailed in
section 4.1 of this report.

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

3.1  The premises is a Indian Restaurant with a licence to serve alcohol on the Premises.

3.2 The application that Members are asked to consider is an application made by Essex
Police for a review of a premises licence requesting that the licence be revoked. A
copy of the current premises licence is attached at APPENDIX A to this report.

3.3 The premises licence authorises the following licensable activity:
. Sale by Retail of Alcohol.

3.4  The application has been properly made and all procedures correctly followed. The
completed application to review is attached as APPENDIX B.

3.5 On 28 May 2019 a letter was received from Essex Police clarifying some
typographical errors on the application form, which do not affect its validity. The
letter is attached as APPENDIX C for the sake of clarity.

3.6 Supplementary documents have been submitted from Essex Police, these are attached
as APPENDIX D.

Agenda Item no. 5
Our Vision: Sustainable Council — Prosperous Future

Page 7



3.7

3.8

3.9

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

In accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003, a copy of the review
application was served by the applicant on all the relevant responsible authorities,
together with the premises licence holder.

There has been a representation received from the Licence Holder via his Solicitor,
and a copy of this representation is attached at APPENDIX E.

There were no other representations received.

CONCLUSION

Members are advised that they have the following options when determining this
application:

1. To modify the conditions of the licence either permanently or for a period not
exceeding three months.

2. To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, either
permanently or for a period not exceeding three months.

3. Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor.

4. To suspend the licence for up to three months.

5. Revoke the licence.

Members are reminded that the applicant and/or any interested party in relation to this
matter may appeal the decision of the Council to the Magistrates’ Court

IMPACT ON STRATEGIC THEMES

The strategic themes of Place, Community and Prosperity underpin the Council’s
vision for the District.

This report supports the strategic themes of Community and Prosperity.

IMPLICATIONS

Q) Impact on Customers — None.

(i) Impact on Equalities — None.

(i)  Impact on Risk — None.

(iv)  Impact on Resources (financial and human) — None.

(V) Impact on the Environment — None.

Agenda Item no. 5

Page 8



Background Papers:
Statutory Guidance issued in accordance with S.182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Maldon District Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy
The Licensing Act 2003

Enquiries to: Lacey Latimer, Licensing Officer, (Tel 01245 606204).

Agenda Item no. 5

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Regulation 33, 34 O
Premises Licence
Maldon District Council

Premises Licence Number 05/00766/LAPRE 208

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including
Post Town, Post Code

Village Tandoori

11 High Street

Southminster

Essex

CMO 7AA

Telephone number _

Where the licence is time limited the dates
N/A

Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Sunday 12:00 - 23:30
Monday - Saturday 11:00 - 00:00

The opening hours of the premises

1_MON 11:00 - 00:00
2 TUE 11:00 - 00:00
3 WED 11:00 - 00:00
4_THU 11:00 - 00:00
5 FRI 11:00 - 00:00
6_SAT 11:00 - 00:00
7 SUN 12:00 - 23:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies
Alcohol is supplied for consumption on the Premises

Page 11




APPENDIX A

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence

Mr. Abdul Hai

318 Church Street

London

N9 9HJ Telephone _

Mr Abdur Rashid
24 Palgrave House
Fleet Road

London

NW3 2QJ Telephone ||| GG

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
N/A

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Mr Abdur Rashid

etephone [

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol
Personal Licence Number:_ Licensing Authority: London - Borough - Camden

Date. .. 237 August 2005 This Premises Licence issued
in accordance with Section 18
of the Licensing Act 2003

Maldon District Council Licensing Authority

Issued 8" June 2012 following a change of Licence holder’s address

Page 12



tara
Rectangle

tara_1
Rectangle


APPENDIX A

Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions

3

Where premises authorise the supply of alcohol no supply of alcohol may be made under the
premises licence-

a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises
licence, or
b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or

his personal licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person
who holds a personal licence.

Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection  (3)(b) applies,

admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that

body.

Where
a) the film classification body is not specified in the licence, or
b) the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this

subsection applies to the film in question,

admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the
licensing authority.

In this section—

“children” means persons aged under 18; and
“film classification body” means the person or persons designated as the authority under
section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c. 39)

(1) Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or  more
individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, the licence must include a
condition that each such individual must

(2) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private

Security Industry Act 2001; or

(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act.

(2) But nothing in subsection () requires such a condition to be imposed—

(2) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private
Security Industry Act 2001 (c. 12) (premises with premises licences authorising
plays or films), or

(b) in respect of premises in relation to—

(i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises
being used exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a
temporary event notice authorising plays or films or under a gaming
licence), or

Page 13



APPENDIX A

(i) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by
regulations under that Act).

(3) For the purposes of this section—

() “security activity” means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule
applies, [F2and which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act (see section
3(2) of that Act)] and

(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion)
applies as it applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

() The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not  carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale
or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—

(2) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or

encourage, individuals to—

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible
person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which
carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where
that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age

verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

Page 14



APPENDIX A

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that
the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification

policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—
(2) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature..

The responsible person must ensure that—

(2) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready
for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following
measures—

(i) beer or cider: '/2 pint;

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iiii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

(1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

(2) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph |—
(2)“duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b)“permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula—

P=D+ (DxV)
where—
(i) P is the permitted price,
(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(i) Vs the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence—

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(i)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

Page 15



APPENDIX A

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994.

(3) Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

(4)(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next
day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second
day.

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

1

Alcohol shall not be sold on the premises otherwise than to persons taking table meals there

and for the consumption by such persons as ancillary to the meal.

2

Suitable beverages other than alcohol (including drinking water) should be equally available for

consumption with or otherwise as an ancillary to meals served in the licensed premises.

3

Permitted hours on this licence means:

On weekdays, other than Christmas day, Good Friday or New year’s Eve from 11am to 00:00
On Sundays, other than Christmas day, or New Year's Eve, and on Good Friday: Noon to 23:30
On Christmas Day: 12 Noon to 23:30;

On New Year's Eve, except on a Sunday, 11:00 to 00:00

On New Year's Eve on a Sunday, 12:00 to 23:30

On New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours

on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following day, midnight on 31st December)

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

Page 16



APPENDIX A

Annex 4 — Plans

Page 17



APPENDIX A

Regulation 33, 34
Premises Licence Summary

Maldon District Council

Premises Licence Number 05/00766/LAPRE 208

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including
Post Town, Post Code

Village Tandoori

11 High Street

Southminster

Essex

CMO 7AA

Telephone number _

Where the licence is time limited the dates
N/A

Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Sunday 12:00 - 23:30
Monday - Saturday 11:00 - 00:00

The opening hours of the premises

1_MON 11:00 - 00:00
2 TUE 11:00 - 00:00
3 WED 11:00 - 00:00
4_THU 11:00 - 00:00
5 FRI 11:00 - 00:00
6_SAT 11:00 - 00:00
7 SUN 12:00 - 23:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies
Alcohol is supplied for consumption on the Premise

Page 18




APPENDIX A

Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence
Mr. Abdul Hai

318 Church Street

London

N9 9HJ

Mr Abdur Rashid
24 Palgrave House
Fleet Road
London

NW3 2QJ

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
N/A

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of
alcohol
Mr. Abdur Rashid

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited
N/A

Date. .. 237 August 2005 This Premises Licence issued
in accordance with Section 18
of the Licensing Act 2003

Maldon District Council Licensing Authority

Issued 8" June 2012 following a change of Licence holder’s address

Page 19




This page is intentionally left blank



ApfondiX B

[Insert name and address of relevant licensing authority and its reference number (optional)]

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

(Insert name of applicant)
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51/ apply for the review of a club
premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
VILLAGE TANDOORI
11 HIGH STREET

Post town SOUTHMINSTER, MALDON Post code (if known) CMO0 7AA

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
ABDUR RASHID & ABDUL HAI

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)
05/00766/LAPRE 208

Part 2 - Applicant details

lam
Please tick v yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible

authority (please read guidance note 1. and complete (A) O
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) X
3) a member of the club to which this application relates O

(please complete (A) below)

Page 21



APPENDIX B

{A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please tick v yes

M [ Ms [ Miss [ Ms O Other title

(for example, Rev)
Surname First names

Please tick ¥ yes

T am 18 years old or over D
Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address
Post town Post Code
Daytime contact telephone number [

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optionai)

Page 22



APPENDIX B

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Nigel DERMOTT 42076439
ESSEX POLICE

COUNTY LICENSING HUB
BRAINTREE POLICE STATION
BYTHS MEADOW
BRAINTREE

CM73DJ

Telephone number (if any)
01245 452035

E-mail address (optional)
| Licensing.applications@essex.pnn.police.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v’

1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety

3) the prevention of public nuisance

4) the protection of children from harm

000X

Page 23



APPENDIX B

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

The grounds for review are that the ctime and disorder objective of the Licensing Act 2003 has
been undermined in that Immigration Compliance and Enforcement officers of the Home Office
discovered disqualified persons working illegally on the premises. The statutory crime prevention
objective in the 2003 Act includes the prevention of immigration crime and the prevention of the
illegal working in licensed premises. In particular, employing a person who is disqualified from
work by reason of their immigration status is a criminal activity which in accordance with the
guidance issued by the Home Office under Sec. 182 to the Licensing Act 2003, Para. 11.26 -
11.28 should be treated particularly seriously.

Page 24




APPENDIX B

Please provide as much information as possible to support the npj)licntion (please read
guidance note 3)

At 1745hrs on Thursday 2™ May 2019 Officers from HM immigration Compliance &
Enforcement team entered premises at Village Tandoori, 11 High Street, Southminster, Maidon,
CMO 7AA under the authority of Sec 179 of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under Sec 36 and
schedule 4 of the Immigration Act 2016 and a warrant issued by a Magistrate.

The premises were open at the time and the officers were met without any resistance. Having
assembled persons found working on the premises enquiries revealed that there was one male
working on these licensed premises who had overstayed their visa since 2006 and had no right to j
work in the UK. Subsequent enquiries with the Home Office confirm that this is the case and that ‘
| the subject had no right to work or recourse to public funds.

The DPS — who is also a joint Premises Licence Holder - was issued with a referral notice for
illegal working civil penalty in respect of this worker.

I view of the circumstances, Essex Police would be seeking a revocation of the Premises licence.
| Essex Police will produce further documentary evidence or other information in support of this

application as it may do under Regulation 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations
2005.

Page 25



APPENDIX B

Please tick ¥ yes
Have you made an application for review relating to the O
premises before
If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year ‘
EEREEEEN

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them

Page 26



APPENDIX B

Please tick ¥
yes
o Ihave sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities X
and the premises licence holder-or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate
o I understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my X

application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

8, (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of apg applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
Ming on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

eyl N . Nigel DERMOTT

Capacity
Licensing Officer with the delegated power of the Chief Officer of Police for Essex (the Chief
Constable of Essex Police) to submit review applications.........ceccoeennenie

Contact name (where not previously given) and postai address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Nigel DERMOTT 42076439

Police Licensing Officer Cheimsford & Maldon

ESSEX POLICE COUNTY LICENSING HUB

BRAINTREE POLICE STATION

BLYTHS MEADOW
Post town Post Code
BRAINTREE CM7 3DJ

Telephone number (if any) 01245 452035

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional) Licensing.applications@essex.pnn.police.uk

Notes for Guidance

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

4. The application form must be signed.

S. An applicant's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

Page 27



APPENDIX B

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Page 28



Aeeendix C
2% ESSEX

-y

gt POLICE

—

Protecting and serving Essex

Licensing Authority
Maldon District Council
Council Offices

Chelmsford Police Station
Licensing Unit

g New Street
'Ii’nrlrllges Road Chelmsford
EsaseirI o
CM1 1NF
CM9 5DL Tel: 01245 212595
Email:
nigel.dermott@essex.pnn.police.uk
Date: 28" May 2019
Dear Sirs

APPLICATION TO REVIEW PREMISES LICENCE 05/00766/LAPRE 208

PREMISES: Village Tandoori 11 High Street, Southminster, Maldon CM0 7AA

| write to inform you of a couple of necessary corrections to our application to review the
above premises licence that we notified to you with a covering letter dated 13™ May 2019.

That covering letter had a typo that included the incorrect Premises Licence reference
number. The correct reference number should have read as above.

The application is also signed and dated 13" September 2018. This date precedes the date of
the executed warrant referred to in the application and therefore is clearly a further typo with
the correct date that should have read 13" may 2019 as per our covering letter.

Please accept my apologies for this error. All other matters contained in the documents were
correct.

Yours Faithfully

Nigel Dermott
Chelmsford & Maldon Police Licensing Officer

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D

\QJESSEX

Protecting and serving Essex

Premises Licence Review

VILLAGE TANDOORI
11 HIGH STREET
SOUTHMINSTER

ESSEX

CMO 7AA

Page 31



Protecting and serving Essex

Premises Licence Review — Village Tandoori

CONTENTS
1.0 Outline of Circumstances Leading to Review
2.0 Reasons for Review
3.0 Outcome Sought
4.0 Immigration Offences
5.0 Steps to Avoid Employment of lllegal Worker
6.0 Relevance/Irrelevance of Civil Penalty Prosecution
7.0 Statutory Guidance (s182 LA 2003)
8.0 Case Law
Appendix A
Document 1. Copy of Warrant
Document 2. Statement of Immigration Officer HENRY
Document 3. Statement of Immigration Officer WHITING
Document 4. Statement of Police Licensing Officer DERMOTT
Document 5. Photograph
Document 6. Referral Notice
Document 7. HO Certificate — status of worker
Document 8. Home Right to Work Guidance
Document 9. Right to work checklist
Document 10. Review Application

Document 11. Village Tandoori Premises Licence

Page 32

page 1

page 5

page 6

page 10
page 12
page 13
page 15
page 18
page 21
page 23
page 24
page 27
page 31
page 34
page35
page36
page 37
page 76
page 78

page 86

APPENDIX D



1.0
1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

APPENDIX D

Outline of the Circumstances Leading to the Review Application

Since 2016, the Essex Police Licensing Team and Immigration Compliance
and Enforcement have undertaken partnership work to jointly tackle licensed
premises which employ illegal workers, using the expertise of their relevant
fields. As a general rule the immigration service conduct visits where they
have received intelligence of illegal working and they have sufficient
resources available to mount a visit and then provide details of the outcome to
the Essex Police Licensing Team to consider taking action under the
Licensing Act 2003.

Evidential material has been provided by Immigration Enforcement to the
police under section 185 of the Licensing Act 2003 to enable Essex Police to
submit this review application on its behalf because the crime prevention
objective has been engaged.

Paragraph 2.6 of the Guidance issued under section 182 Licensing Act 2003
explicitly states that “the prevention of crime includes the prevention of
immigration crime including the prevention of illegal working in licensed
premises. Licensing authorities should work with Home Office Immigration
Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these matters

In February 2019 the Home Office Immigration Department received
information that named persons were working illegally at the Village Tandoori
restaurant, 11 High Street, Southminster, CMO 7AA. One of these named
persons was known to the Home Office as an overstayer since 2009 who had
not been located.

The manager, designated premises supervisor and joint premises licence
holder is an Abdul RASHID. The business is a licensed Indian restaurant with
around 40 covers. The other joint premises licence holder is a Mr Abdul HAI.

The allegation was that these individuals had expired visas and that the owner
Abdul RASHID paid them cash in hand whilst allowing them to sleep at the
premises and to work each day except Tuesdays.

The premises had previously come to the attention of Immigration Compliance
and Enforcement in April 2015 when police had arrested a suspect for
domestic violence. During the police investigation it was ascertained that the
arrested suspect lived and worked at Village Tandoori and liaison between the
police and immigration services established that he was illegally living and
working in the UK (he eventually took advantage of the Home Office Voluntary
Returns Service (VRS) and was repatriated. The suspect named Abdur
RASHID as both the owner and manager of the premises.

In consequence Immigration Officer (I0) HENRY made an application for, and
obtained, a warrant to enter and search the premises under paragraph 17 (2)
of the Immigration Act 1971 (as amended). The warrant authorised
immigration officers accompanied by such persons as are necessary for the
purpose of the search (see Document 1).

Page 33 1



1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

1.17

1.18

APPENDIX D

In any event Immigration Officers have a power of entry to licensed premises
under section 179 Licensing Act 2003 as do Essex Police licensing officers
who have been delegated this power of entry under section 38 of the Police
Reform Act 2002.

In accordance with this warrant, uniformed Immigration Compliance and
Enforcement (ICE) officers attended the premises at 5.45 p.m. on Thursday
2"4 May 2019 accompanied by Mr Dermott and Mr Burke (non-uniformed
police licensing officers).

On entry to the premises, IO HENRY encountered a male behind the counter
who stated the manager, Abdur RASHID was on site and in the kitchen. At
the same time other I0s entered the kitchen in order to prevent any staff
absconding.

One of those I0s who entered the kitchen was 10 WHITING (see Document
3). On entering the kitchen 10 WHITING 3 males, 1 of which was smartly
dressed (RASHID) and 2 of which were dressed in ‘chef’s whites’ and
observed by IO WHITING to both be using kitchen utensils to tend to various
dishes that were in pots on the hob.

One of these, the Immigration Offender AHMED, was seen by |O WHITING to
remove a naan bread from the oven and place it into a foil take away style
bag and place it on the side.

All those encountered in the kitchen were brought through to ‘front of house’
for immigration checks and having identified himself as the business owner to
IO HENRY, Mr RASHID was served a copy of the warrant.

Via an interpreter service, the Immigration Offender was questioned by 10
WHITING. Having confirmed the Immigration Offender’s identity, 10
WHITING conducted Home Office checks that revealed the offender was a
Bangladesh national who had entered the United Kingdom in 2005 and his
Leave to Remain had expired on 22" February 2006 and the offender had
made no applications to regularise his stay in the UK. He was an overstayer
with no right to remain in the UK and no right to work and was committing
criminal offences under the Immigration Act 1971 — aided and abetted by
RASHID.

During questioning he stated he had been working at the premises for one
week and four days and his job was washing in the kitchen (though he had
been seen cooking) and that he worked each lunch time for an hour followed
by evening work from 5.00 p.m. every day.

The Immigration Offender went on to state that he was paid cash in hand by
the manager (RASHID) and that this was £280 per week and he had no
National Insurance number and paid no tax. When questioned as to whether
RASHID had asked for any documents before employing him he said, “No”.

IO WHITING took a photograph of the offender dressed in his chef’'s white
(see Document 5).

Page 34 2



1.19

1.20

1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

APPENDIX D

Following a search of his accommodation upstairs, the Immigration Offender
was found to be in possession of NHS issued medication for high cholesterol
and blood pressure and £615 in cash.

Mr RASHID was questioned by 10 HENRY (see Document 2) concerning the
illegal worker and the business. RASHID claimed that the company was
Stalham Spice LTD, Village Tandoori — however a variation of the VAT
Number he quoted is registered instead to a company named Saraha Spice
Ltd, Tandoori Villa. Saraha Spice Ltd was incorporated in 2015 and has the
same registered address as the Village Tandoori premises. Stalham Spice
Ltd cannot be located on any records and appears unconnected with this
Premises Licence.

During questioning Mr RASHID admitted he had been involved with the
premises for a considerable period and was the manager responsible for both
employing and paying the staff and that he procured the staff from London
and provided them with accommodation.

When questioned by IO HENRY about any employment checks he conducted,
Mr RASHID said that he normally checked but sometimes he had people
come to help out. He was, when required to do so, unable to provide any
evidence of staff employment checks (i.e. right to work in the UK) and could
only produce a wage skip for another worker. He also claimed that the
immigration offender had only been at the premises since Monday — an
assertion at odds with that given by the immigration offender himself.

At the conclusion of the encounter, RASHID was served a Notice of Potential
Liability for a Civil Penalty for the employment of an illegal worker. The
Immigration Offender was detained, served with a form explaining his liability
to immediate removal from the UK and taken to Chelmsford Police Station
where he was subsequently transferred to an immigration holding facility to
await deportation from the UK.

For 13 years the offender had been able to remain in the UK because
employers either knowingly or by wilful blindness employed him and allowed
him therefore to support himself in the UK rather than returning to Bangladesh
and he now claims Asylum on 7/5/2019; during this time he has paid no tax or
National Insurance and likewise his employers have escaped the payment of
NI employer and pension contributions whilst allowing them to have a
competitive advantage over their law abiding competitors. Such facilitation
has also enable the offender to receive NHS medical treatment to which he
was not entitled.

Following the actions of the Immigration service, the local Police Licensing
Officer covering the Maldon area had a further conversation with Mr RASHID
more directly related to responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003
(LA2003).

The Premises licence reference 05/00766/LAPRE 208 was not being correctly
displayed in accordance with the requirements of the LA2003 in that it was

Page 35 3



1.27

1.28

1.29

1.30

1.31

1.32

1.33

1.34

APPENDIX D

hidden in a cubby hole situated behind the serving counter and not visible to
the licensing officer.

After confirmation that Mr RASHID was one of the joint premises licence
holders and that he was still the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS), he
was unable to produce his personal licence. This offence was pointed out to
Mr RASHID who claimed he did not understand that responsibility.

Mr RASHID confirmed that the address shown on the licence in respect of him
was incorrect and that he had moved house some three years previously. The
offence of failing to notify change of address was pointed out, to which he was
only apologetic.

Mr RASHID confirmed his lack of knowledge in respect of his responsibilities
as a DPS and was unable to recall any of the licensing objectives even when
heavily prompted.

Mr RASHID confirmed previous conversation with Immigration officers in that
he was the person responsible for the employment of persons working at the
premises and that he was aware of the Home Office Guidance in respect of
the employment of illegal workers yet had carried out no immigration checks
or had any such documents in relation to any of his employees.

Mr RASHID initially stated that the offender was on trial for a week but later
went on to say that he was covering for staff sickness and had been referred
to him by another. His stated role was as a person washing up. He admitted
he had taken him at face value in relation to his immigration and employment
status without seeing any documentation before employing him.

Mr RASHID stated he had not used any third party service for the checking of
the offender’s status or requested a national insurance number or tax code.

Mr RASHID stated he paid the offender £80 cash in hand for the week and
was working 5pm — 10pm on only three nights of the week. The offender was
confirmed as being provided with accommodation and daily meals.

Mr RASHID confirmed that none of his workers in his employ had any
employment contracts relating to any entitlement to sick pay, leave etc.

Page 36 4



APPENDIX D

Reasons for Review

2.1 Essex Police has brought this review because the statutory crime prevention
objective in the 2003 Act includes the prevention of immigration crime and the
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (Paragraph 11.26 Guidance
for Licensing Authorities to Prevent lllegal Working in Licensed Premises in
England and Wales [6 April 2017] (Home Office).

2.2 Paragraphs 7.1 — 7.4 of this application detail why a warning or other
intervention falling short of a review would have been inappropriate when
considering premises who have been found to engage illegal workers and
therefore why Essex Police has proceeded straight to review.

2.3 lllegal worker(s) were discovered at the premises. It is an offence to work
when a person is disqualified to do so and such an offence can only be
committed with the co-operation of a premises licence holder or its agents. It
is also an offence to employ an illegal worker where there is reason to believe
this is the case. The case of East Lindsey District Council v Hanif (see 8.12)
determined that in such circumstances, even without a prosecution, the crime
prevention objective is engaged.

2.4  Whether by negligence or wilful blindness illegal workers were engaged in
activity on the premises. It is a straightforward process for an employer to
ascertain what documents they should check before a person is allowed to
work (please see section 5 and Appendix A of this application). In following
Home Office guidance employers are afforded a ‘statutory defence’.

2.5 Essex Police submits that for commercial reasons those engaged in the
management of the premises ought to have known illegal workers had been
engaged or had otherwise deliberately avoided finding out.

Page 37 5



3.0
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

APPENDIX D

Outcome Sought

Essex Police asks that the premises licence is revoked. The premises licence
holder himself or through its agents have engaged in criminal activity by
employing illegal workers and facilitating disqualified immigrants to work
illegally or have failed to take any responsible steps to establish their
entitlement to work.

Sections 4 — 7 (of this submission), Appendix A and appended documents
provide the licensing sub-committee background arguments and information
relating to this review. These:

e Support Essex Police’s submission that revocation is an appropriate
step;

e Provide the sub-committee with a sound rationale as to why, despite
the respondent’s argument, it should revoke the licence; and

o Satisfy the Authority that its decision is defensible if challenged on
appeal.

A respondent to an application to Review a Premises Licence may suggest
that conditions are imposed which would prevent a reoccurrence of the
employment of illegal workers in the future; an argument that the sub-
committee should take remedial and not punitive action.

Paragraph 1.16 of the Guidance states “that “Licence conditions should not
duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities
placed on the employer by other legislation”.

Since 2006 (with the introduction of the Immigration, Asylum and Nationality
Act 2006) employers have had a duty to conduct checks to ensure employees
and potential employees are not disqualified from working. Only by
completing the required checks and maintaining records of such checks can
an employer demonstrate a ‘statutory excuse’ and evade liability for a civil
penalty issued by Immigration Enforcement.

Essex Police contends that a licence holder who has himself or through his
agents has negligently or deliberately failed to conduct right to work checks
which have been a requirement since 2006 should not be afforded an
opportunity to do so until caught and then merely be asked to do what they
should have been doing already.

Essex Police would refer the committee to section 5 and Appendix A of its
submission and rely on paragraph 1.16 of the Guidance, together with
paragraph 11.27 and 11.28 of the Guidance (set out in this submission at 7.9
and 7.10) as to why conditions are inappropriate.

Page 38 6



3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

APPENDIX D

The cases of Bassetlaw (set out at 8.2 onwards) considered punitive
(suspension/revocation) v remedial responses where a review is brought and
in particular set out that deterrence was a legitimate outcome of a review.

The imposition of conditions would be (even if it were not replicating ‘other
duties or responsibilities placed on the employer’) merely an action to remedy
the harm occasioned by the employment of illegal workers. This is a serious
matter (as defined by paragraph 11.27 of the Guidance) and Mrs Justice
Slade (case of Bassetlaw) examining was clear that “the action on appeal
being confined in effect to reiterating existing practice with a minimal addition
was entirely inappropriate”.

The case of Bassetlaw is clear in in its examination of the legitimacy of
deterrence and the imposition of conditions in ‘serious matters’ and finds
support within the Guidance itself at paragraph 11.26 (detailed in this
submission at 7.5) — deterrence is a legitimate response and the committee
does not need to consider only remedial action when a review is brought.

If it were not for criminally minded or complicit employers; illegal workers
would not be able to obtain a settled lifestyle and deprive legitimate workers of
employment. The use of illegal labour provides an unfair competitive edge
and deprives the UK economy of tax revenue. lllegal workers are often paid
below the minimum wage (itself an offence) and National Insurance payments
are not paid. The main draw for illegal immigration is work and low-skilled
migrants are increasingly vulnerable to exploitation by criminal enterprises;
finding themselves in appalling accommodation and toiling in poor working
conditions for long hours for little remuneration.

Respondents who fail to convince a sub-committee that the imposition of
conditions to undertake proper right to work checks is a suitable alternative to
a punitive (deterrent) outcome often point to the option of suspension of a
licence; pointing out that this may be a suitable punitive response instead
which will deter others.

Often this will include claims that the business has ‘learnt its lesson’ and that
since its criminal activity has been discovered it has reconsidered its position,
brought in new procedures, referred to specialist consultants and introduced
managers etc. On occasion it is hinted that the respondent will ‘accept’ a
suspension as an alternative to revocation, assuaging an authority’s concern
that an appeal may otherwise be launched.

Essex Police would counter such claims and point to the continuing changes

made to both immigration law and the Guidance which point to a requirement
to send a clear message to potential illegal immigrants that UK authorities will
do all they can to prevent them finding illegal employment and a similar

Page 39 7



3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

APPENDIX D

message to employers that those employing illegal workers will face severe
disruption and penalties.

Paragraph 11.26 of the Guidance provides that, “The licensing authority’s duty
is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives and
the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community and
not those of the individual licence holder”.

That illegal working is considered extremely serious is set out within
paragraph 11.27 of the Guidance:

“There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with
licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously.
These are the use of the licensed premises...for employing a person
who is disqualified from that work by reason of their immigration status
in the UK”.

Essex Police would point out that the above paragraph requires no
‘knowledge’ that an individual is an illegal worker — instead it again draws the
sub-committees attention to the simplicity (set out at section 5 and Appendix
A of the police submission) in avoiding the occurrence in the first place.

Finally; Essex Police would invite the sub-committee to consider paragraph
11.28 of the Guidance which states:

“It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are
responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to deter
such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority
determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined through
the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the
licence —even in the first instance —should be seriously considered.”

Essex Police concedes that this does not say a sub-committee MUST revoke
a licence but what it would say is that where an employer has employed an
illegal worker or otherwise permitted an illegal worker (whether paid or
unpaid) to undertake work; it has done so when it ought to have known it
should not have done.

A punitive response is required to ensure that licence holder and/or its agents
are not allowed to repeat the exercise and in particular, in the interests of the
wider community to support responsible businesses and the jobs of both UK
citizens and lawful migrants. It is also required to act as a deterrent to others
who would otherwise seek to seek an unfair competitive advantage, exploit
workers and deny work to the local community, evade the payment of income
tax and (unlawfully) inflate their profits to the expense of others.

Page 40 8



APPENDIX D

3.21 Essex Police believes revocation is an appropriate outcome to this review
application.

Page 41 o



4.0
4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

APPENDIX D

Immigration Offences

The prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective has been engaged
because it is, in part, concerned with the prevention of immigration crime in
connection with licensed premises.

The basis of the police submission seeking revocation of the premises licence
is that the employment of illegal workers is a criminal matter as is working
illegally. lllegal workers are those subject to immigration control and either do
not have leave to enter or remain in the UK, or who are in breach of a
condition preventing them taking up the work in question.

It is an employer’s responsibility to be aware of their obligations and ensure
they understand the immigration landscape to avoid the risk of prosecution,
the imposition of a civil penalty or the revocation/suspension of their premises
licence.

Since 2006, with the introduction of the Immigration, Asylum and Nationality
Act, it has been unlawful to employ a person who is disqualified from
employment because of their immigration status. Employers risk a civil
penalty (of up to £20,000 per employed person) if they are found to have
negligently employed someone who is disqualified. A statutory excuse
against payment exists where the employer can demonstrate they correctly
carried out document checks, i.e. that they were duped by fake or forged
documents. Employers therefore have to conduct checks to ensure that their
employees have the right to work.

The Immigration Act 2016 came into force in July 2016 and its explanatory
notes state that “these offences were broadened to capture, in particular,
employers who deliberately did not undertake right to work checks in order
that they could not have the specific intent (previously) required to ‘knowingly’
employ an illegal worker. It amended other immigration legislation and
specifically reduced the burden of proof for offences.

Since 2016 an employer may be prosecuted not only if they knew their
employee was disqualified from working but also if they had reasonable
cause to believe that an employee did not have the right to work: what might
be described as wilful ignorance’, where either no documents are requested
or none are presented despite arequest. This means an offence is
committed when an employer ‘ought to have known’ the person did not have
the right to work.

Since 2016 it has also been an offence to work when disqualified from doing
so. Itis obvious that without a negligent or wilfully ignorant employer, an
illegal worker cannot work. Such an employer facilitates a criminal offence

Page 42 10



4.8

APPENDIX D

and Essex Police highlights this as relevant irrespective of whether a civil
penalty is imposed or a prosecution launched for employing an illegal worker.

In this context, under section 3(1)(C)(i) Immigration Act 1971 (as amended by
the 2016 Act) working restrictions are not limited simply to employed work but
includes paid or unpaid work, paid and unpaid work placements undertaken
as part of a course or period of study, self-employment and engaging in
business or professional activity. Undertaking, for instance, an unpaid work
trial or working in exchange for a non-monetary reward (such as board and
lodging) is illegally working and is a criminal offence committed by the worker
and facilitated by the ‘employer’.

Page 43 1"



5.0
5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

APPENDIX D

Steps to Avoid the Employment of an lllegal Worker

It is a straightforward process for any employer, no matter how small, to
prevent themselves employing an illegal worker. If an employer has failed to
take even the most basic steps then they have chosen to remain ignorant of
the immigration status of their workforce and no amount of potential imposed
conditions is sufficient, in our opinion, to avoid the legitimacy of revocation in
proving a deterrent to others to the employment of illegal workers.

The Home Office has made checklists widely available which set out what a
responsible employer should ask for ahead of employing any person in order
to demonstrate ‘due diligence’ and avoid liability for inadvertently employing
an illegal worker.

Since April 2017 these checklists have been embedded in the statutory
applications for personal licences and premises licences, the transfer of
premises licences and designated premises supervisor variations.

The first 4 ‘hits’ on a Google search for “right to work” are links to employer
checklists and information on the GOV.UK website.

The first link (https://www.gov.uk/check-job-applicant-right-to-work) details
general advice, checking the documents, taking a copy of the documents,
what if the job applicant can’t show their documents and provides details of an
employers’ telephone helpline. This page has a direct link to what documents
are acceptable proofs of a right to work in the UK and also allows an employer
to fill out an online enquiry about a named individual they are considering
offering employment to.

Appendix A sets the above out in some detail.

Page 44 12



6.0
6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

APPENDIX D

Relevancel/lrrelevance of a Civil Penalty or Prosecution

An employer found to have ‘employed’ an illegal worker may, dependent on
culpability and the evidence available, be issued with a civil penalty or
prosecuted or indeed neither. In common with other agencies with law
enforcement responsibilities there exist a number of reasons why Immigration
Enforcement may prefer a non-judicial disposal (e.g. a warning or immigration
civil penalty etc.) to a judicial disposal (prosecution) — one being cost.

A prosecution may follow where the evidence is compelling that an employer
has employed an illegal worker and had reasonable cause to believe that
worker was disqualified from working.

Alternatively, where the evidence is less compelling or the evidence points to
negligence rather than intent, a civil penalty may be issued in accordance with
the Home Office Code of Practice on Preventing lllegal Working (May 2014).
In the case of a civil penalty the balance of probabilities test applies whereas
a prosecution requires a higher burden of proof.

There are many factors where, even if an illegal worker is discovered, a
penalty may not be imposed and these include the subsequent cooperation of
the employer. Often though there is no dispute that an illegal worker was
working at a premises, immigration officers conducting the initial investigation
cannot gather sufficient evidence to ‘prove’ that the individual was ‘employed’
at that time. This can often be the case where wages are not paid, ‘friends’
assist or it is alleged an unpaid trial period was underway — as well as ‘they
only started today’ defence.

However, to issue a civil penalty under section 15 Immigration, Asylum and
Nationality Act 2006 the Home Office Code of Practice requires some proof
that not only was an illegal worker working at the premises but they were
‘employed’. Usually this is taken as meaning the illegal worker was under a
contract of service or apprenticeship, whether express or implied and whether
oral or written.

In such cases where this cannot be demonstrated, a civil penalty may not be
issued even where the premises licence holder or his agent has facilitated an
illegal worker committing an offence under section 24B Immigration Act 1971
(as amended by Immigration Act 2016) of working illegally. This does not
however prevent the crime prevention objective being engaged with as the
premises licence holder has nonetheless facilitated a criminal offence taking
place and the lack of checks suggests that in the past (and is likely in the
future) ‘employed illegal workers. The East Lindsey case (see 8.2) provides
that action (revocation) to prevent what is likely to happen in the future is
legitimate.

Page 45 13



6.7

6.8

APPENDIX D

The issuing of a civil penalty means Immigration Enforcement is confident it
can demonstrate (on the balance of probabilities) that the illegal worker was
‘employed’ and that a statutory excuse (i.e. that proper checks were carried
out) does not exist. A prosecution demonstrates that Immigration
Enforcement is confident it can show (beyond all reasonable doubt) that the
illegal worker was ‘employed’ and the employer had reasonable grounds to
believe they had no right to work.

The lack of either a civil penalty or prosecution does not mean that an illegal
worker was not working; rather that the strict definition of ‘employed’ has not
been made out sufficiently even though the illegal worker themselves
committed an offence which was facilitated by the premises licence holder or
its agents.

Page 46 14



7.0
7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

APPENDIX D

Statutory Guidance (s182 LA 2003) and the Authority’s Licensing Policy

In order to deflect responsibility and avoid punitive action, respondent’s to
review hearings sometimes refer to both the statutory guidance issued under
section 182 Licensing Act 2003 and those parts of the Authority’s own policy
which replicate paragraph 11.10 of that Guidance, viz:

Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns
about problems identified at premises, it is good practice for them to
give licence holder’s early warning of their concerns and the need for
improvement, and where possible they should advise the licence or
certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those
concerns.

Essex Police submits that in the particular circumstances of cases where
Immigration Control and Enforcement receive intelligence concerning the
employment of illegal workers and act upon it; such warnings are
inappropriate.

Not only would advance warning of enforcement activity prevent the detention
of persons committing crimes and the securing of evidence; a warning after
the event to comply with immigration legislation serves as an inducement to
continue serious criminal activity until caught ‘the first time’.

In particular; Essex Police submits that paragraph 11.10 does not apply when
more specific paragraphs (Reviews arising in connection with crime, 11.24 —
11.29) apply to the case in question.

Paragraph 11.26

Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds
that the premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is
solely to determine what steps should be taken in connection with the
premises licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective.
....The licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the
promotion of the licensing objectives and the prevention of illegal
working in the interests of the wider community and not those of the
individual licence holder.

Thus the financial hardship occasioned by the suspension or revocation of the
premises licence should, we opine, not sway the sub-committee but instead it
should look at what is appropriate to promote the objective within the wider
business and local community given (as the Rt. Hon James Brokenshine,
Immigration Minister quoted when he introduced the Immigration Act 2016)
“illegal labour exploits workers, denies work to UK citizens and legal migrants
and drives down wages”. It also provides those employing illegal workers with
a competitive advantage over its business rivals and deprives the UK

Page 47 15



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

APPENDIX D

Government of income tax receipts. It also deprives workers access to State
care and protection, the minimum wage, protection of the working time and
health and safety regulations and both the State and (compulsory) private
pension schemes.

In particular; the sub-committee will be asked to consider (below) the cases of
R (Bassetlaw District Council) v Worksop Magistrates’ Court; [2008] WLR (D)
350 and East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif (Trading as Zara’s
Restaurant and Takeaway), [2016} EWHC 1265 (Admin) where in both cases
the High Court stated remedy of the harm or potential harm is not the only
consideration and that deterrence is an appropriate consideration in dealing
with reviews where there has been activity in connection with crime.

Essex Police submit that in this case, revocation of the premises licence is
appropriate and proportionate as deterrence to other businesses in
implementing the authority’s duty to prevent illegal working.

Paragraph 11.27 of the Guidance states:

There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with
licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These

are the use of the licensed premises....... for employing a person who
is disqualified from that work by reason of their immigration status in
the UK.

Essex Police would draw the sub-committee’s attention to the change in
wording of this paragraph following the April 2017 revision of the guidance,
where the previous reference to ‘knowingly employing’ was removed.

Paragraph 11.28 of the Guidance states:

It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which
are responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to
deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing
authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being
undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is
expected that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance —
should be seriously considered.

Essex Police considers this paragraph self-explanatory; where an enterprise
employs illegal workers it is the duty of Essex Police to work with Immigration
Enforcement to bring forward reviews and for the authority to consider
revocation in the first instance.

In support of this statement; Essex Police would draw the sub-committee’s
attention to the “Guidance for Licensing Authorities to Prevent lllegal Working

Page 48 16



7.12

7.13

7.14

APPENDIX D

in Licensed Premises in England and Wales” (Home Office)[April 2017] where
at section 4.1 it states;

“It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies will
use the review procedures effectively to deter illegal working”.

The changes to the Statutory Guidance (11.25 & 11.26) and the July 2016
changes to the Immigration Act aim to disrupt undocumented migrants’ ability
to secure a settled lifestyle or establish themselves in the UK by depriving
them of employment opportunities, such as either they choose to not come to
the UK or they remove themselves voluntarily.

Since the main draw for illegal migration is work, and since low-skilled
migrants are increasingly vulnerable to exploitation at the hand of criminal
enterprises, the law has strengthened enforcement measures and the
statutory Guidance to deter illegal workers and those that employ them.

Deterrence is a key element of the UK government’s strategy to reduce illegal
working and is supported by both the Guidance and Case Law (see 8.0
below).

Page 49 17



8.0
8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

APPENDIX D

Case Law

Deterrence as a legitimate consideration by a licensing sub-committee has
been considered before the High Court where remedial measures (such as
the imposition of additional conditions) were distinguished from legitimate
deterrent (punitive) measures such as revocation.

R (Bassetlaw District Council) v Worksop Magistrates’ Court; [2008] WLR (D)
350.

This was a case where a premises had sold alcohol to under age persons and
subsequently the licensing authority suspended the licence. This was
overturned on appeal to the Magistrates’ Court and subsequently appealed to
the High Court by the authority.

Issues relevant to the case before today’s sub-committee which were
considered in the Bassetlaw judgement included:

e whether a licensing authority was restricted to remedial action (not
punitive action such as revocation); and

e certain criminal activities which may arise in connection with licensed
premises, and which the Secretary of State considers should be
treated particularly seriously - and the licensing authority’s duty in
circumstances such as these "... to take steps with a view to the
promotion of the licensing objectives in the interests of the wider
community and not those of the individual holder of the premises
licence (now contained within paragraphs 11.26 and 11.27).

It also considered what is now contained withi) paragraph 11.20

In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that
licensing authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the
cause or causes of the concerns that the representations identify. The
remedial action taken should generally be directed at these causes and
should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate
response to address the causes of concern that instigated the review.

It also considered; what is now contained within paragraph 11.21

However, it will always be important that any detrimental financial
impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is
appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the licensing
objectives and for the prevention of illegal working in licensed
premises.

In the judgement, in favour of the Authority, Mrs Justice Slade stated (at 32.1
& 33.1 of the citation):

Page 50 18



8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

APPENDIX D

“Where criminal activity is applicable, as here, wider considerations
come into play and the furtherance of the licensing objective engaged
includes the prevention of crime. In those circumstances, deterrence, in
my judgment, is an appropriate objective and one contemplated by the
guidance issued by the Secretary of State. However, in my judgment
deterrence is an appropriate consideration when the paragraphs
specifically directed to dealing with reviews where there has been
activity in connection with crime are applicable.”

Having confirmed the legitimacy of punitive measures (suspension/revocation)
for offences listed in (what is now contained within paragraph 11.27 of the
Guidance), Mrs Justice Slade concerned herself with another aspect of the
appeal — namely the imposition of conditions which were already present but
not properly implemented (paragraph 34.1).

This has some corollary with the argument of some review application
respondents that the imposition of conditions to check immigration status
either directly or through an agency (though essentially a requirement since
2006 under the Immigration, Asylum and Immigration Act 2006) would serve
as sufficient remedy for the employment of illegal workers to negate a
deterrent (suspension/revocation) being imposed by the sub-committee
despite the wording of the Guidance at paragraph 11.28.

Mrs Justice Slade stated: The sixth new provision was acceptable
identification to establish the age of a purchaser shall be a driving licence with
photographs, passport or proof of age scheme card recognised by or
acceptable by the licensing authority. | am told these provisions were already
in place, but not properly implemented. No doubt those are perfectly sensible
and appropriate provisions to be included on a licence. However it is said that
the action taken on appeal being confined in effect to reiterating existing
practice with a minimal addition was entirely inappropriate to meet the
situation where there have been sales of alcohol to 14 year old girls.

Essex Police contends that in the case before the sub-committee the facts are
similar. In the cited case straightforward sensible enquiries could have been
made as to the age of the children and the imposition of additional conditions
as a form of remedy was considered inappropriate by Mrs Justice Slade for
‘those serious cases’ set out in the Guidance.

In the case before the sub-committee, simple steps (set out at Appendix A)
were available to prevent the employment of illegal workers — none were
taken; the imposition of conditions to remedy this situation is inconsistent with
the section 182 Guidance and this case citation. A negligent employer should
expect revocation in the first instance.

Page 51 19



8.12

8.13

APPENDIX D

East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif (Trading as Zara’s Restaurant and
Takeaway), [2016] EWHC 1265 (Admin)

This is a recent High Court decision (published April 2016) which has
similarities with the one before the sub-committee in that it related to the
employment of an illegal worker and where a prosecution for such had not
been instigated.

Amongst other matters it had been argued for the premises licence holder that
the crime prevention objective was not engaged where a prosecution or
conviction for the employment of an illegal worker was not in place. Whilst the
initial hearing may have suggested several illegal workers being employed,
the High Court appeal and decision related to the employment of one
individual and is therefore, Essex Police would argue, indistinguishable from
the matter before the sub-committee today.

The case reaffirms the principle that responsible authorities need not wait for
the licensing objectives to actually be undermined; that crucially in considering
whether the crime prevention objective has been engaged a prospective
consideration (i.e. what is likely to happen in the future) of what is warranted
is a key factor. It also reaffirmed the case of Bassetlaw in concluding that
deterrence is a legitimate consideration of a sub-committee.

Mr Justice Jay stated: “The question was not whether the respondent
had been found guilty of criminal offences before a relevant tribunal,
but whether revocation of his licence was appropriate and
proportionate in the light of the salient licensing objectives, namely the
prevention of crime and disorder. This requires a much broader
approach to the issue than the mere identification of criminal
convictions. It is in part retrospective, in as much as antecedent facts
will usually impact on the statutory question, but importantly the
prevention of crime and disorder requires a prospective consideration
of what is warranted in the public interest, having regard to the twin
considerations of prevention and deterrence. In any event, | agree with
Mr Kolvin that criminal convictions are not required.”

Mr Justice Jay added: “Having regard in particular to the twin
requirements of prevention and deterrence, there was in my judgment
only one answer to this case. The respondent exploited a vulnerable
individual from his community by acting in plain, albeit covert, breach of
the criminal law. In my view his licence should be revoked.

Page 52 20



APPENDIX D

APPENDIX A
HOW DOES AN EMPLOYER ENSURE THEY EMPLOY ONLY ‘LEGAL WORKERS’

The Home Office has made checklists widely available which set out what a
responsible employer should ask for ahead of employing any person in order to
demonstrate ‘due diligence’ and avoid liability for inadvertently employing an illegal
worker.

Since April 2017 these checklists have been embedded in the statutory applications
for personal licences and premises licences, the transfer of premises licences and
designated premises supervisor variations.

The first 4 ‘hits’ on a Google search for “right to work” are links to employer
checklists and information on the GOV.UK website.

The first link (https://www.gov.uk/check-job-applicant-right-to-work) details general
advice, checking the documents, taking a copy of the documents, what if the job
applicant can’t show their documents and provides details of an employers’
telephone helpline (see below). This page has a direct link to what documents are
acceptable proofs of a right to work in the UK this lists the acceptable documents
and what to look for (it includes photographs and what to look for in particular).

The second link is to the Home Office document; “An Employer’s Guide to Right to
Work Checks” (published 16 May 2014 last updated 16 August 2017).

Another link provides a site (hitps://www.gov.uk/employee-immigration-employment-
status) which guides an employer through the process AND allows an employer to
make an online submission to the Home Office to check if the proposed employee is
prohibited from working as well as providing a telephone helpline.

The first link (https://www.gov.uk/check-job-applicant-right-to-work) provides:

General Advice
Amongst the advice contained on the GOV.UK website is the following:

e You must see the applicant’s original documents;

¢ You must check that the documents are valid with the applicant present; and

e You must make and keep copies of the documents and record the date you
made the check.

Checking the Documents

In relation to checking the documents it also adds that an employer needs to check
that:

¢ the documents are genuine, original and unchanged and belong to the person
who has given them to you;

Page 53 21



APPENDIX D

e the dates for the applicant’s right to work in the UK haven’t expired;

e photos are the same across all documents and look like the applicant;

e dates of birth are the same across all documents;

e the applicant has permission to do the type of work you’re offering (including
any limit on the number of hours they can work);

e for students you see evidence of their study and vacation times; and

e if 2 documents give different names, the applicant has supporting documents
showing why they’re different, eg a marriage certificate or divorce decree

Taking a copy of the documents
When you copy the documents:

e make a copy that can’t be changed, e.g. a photocopy

o for passports, copy any page with the expiry date and applicant’s details (eg
nationality, date of birth and photograph) including endorsements, eg a work
visa

e for biometric residence permits and residence cards (biometric format), copy
both sides

e for all other documents you must make a complete copy

e keep copies during the applicant’'s employment and for 2 years after they stop
working for you

e record the date the check was made

If the job applicant can’t show their documents

You must ask the Home Office to check your employee or potential employee’s
immigration employment status if one of the following applies:

e you’re reasonably satisfied that they can’t show you their documents because
of an outstanding appeal, administrative review or application with the Home
Office;

e they have an Application Registration Card; or

e they have a Certificate of Application that is less than 6 months old

Application registration cards and certificates of application must state that the work
the employer is offering is permitted. Many of these documents don'’t allow the
person to work.

The Home Office will send you a ‘Positive Verification Notice’ to confirm that the
applicant has the right to work. You must keep this document.

ACCEPTABLE DOCUMENTS

The list of acceptable documents can be found via the link to
https://www.qov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/44195
7/employers quide to acceptable right to work documents v5.pdf

Page 54 22



Name

State under which
Section warrant to be
issued

Specify premises

Identify so far as
possible, the articles
or persons to be
sought.

APPENDIX D

[APPLICANT’S] [OCCUPIER’S] COPY

WARRANT TO ENTER AND SEARCH PREMISES

Magistrates' Courts in South East England
Flm 30.04.19 5 HENRY

On this day an application was made by:
Immigration Officer il HENRY 17525

for the issue of a warrant under Paragraph 17(2) of Schedule 2 of the Immigration
Act 1971 (as amended)

to enter and search the premises situated at:

Village Tandoori, 11 High Street, Southminster, CMO 7AA, any areas of trade
open to the public, any areas of preparation, store rooms, any linked
accommodation or outbuildings that form part of the address.

and search for:

B 2 Bangladeshi national who has overstayed his student visa.
And;

Any persons of Indian sub continent origin subject to immigration control, who

are working in breach of their leave or temporary release, are otherwise
present in the UK without leave, or have entered the UK illegally.

Authority is hereby given for any Constable or Immigration Officer, accompanied by
such person or persons as are necessary for the purpose of the search, to enter the
said premises on one occasion only, within Three months from the date of issue of this
warrant and to search for the person(s) in respect of which the application is made.

Date: 30" April 2019

Justice of the Peace

Any queries regarding this document should be directed to the Legal Support Team, Essex Magistrates” Court, PO Box 10754,

Chelmsford, CM1 9PZ

Page 55 23



APPENDIX IXG 11 (2004)

RESTRICTED (when complete)

WITNESS STATEMENT

(CJ Act 1967, 5.9 MC Act 1980, ss.5A (3) (a) and 5B; MC Rules 1981, r.70)

StatemeENt Of: AArON HEN R Y ..o e ettt ettt e e st e s a et et aaaneeanes

Age if under 18 Over 18 ... (if over 18 insert "over 18") Occupation: Immigration Officer..............

This statement (consisting of 2 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and
I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Signature ...... FE T enry. oo Date: 07/05/2019

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded (supply witness details on rear)

| am an Immigration Officer currently based at EAST OF ENGLAND ICE, CUSTOM HOUSE,
VIEWPOINT ROAD, FELIXSTOWE, SUFFOLK, IP11 3RF. | am an Arrest trained Immigration
Officer. On 02/05/2019 | was tasked to attend VILLAGE TANDOORI, 11 HIGH STREET,

SOUTHMINSTER, ESSEX, CMO 7AA.
My role on the visit was OIC.

The visit team for this evening consisted of the following Officers, Her Majesty’s Inspector DALDRY,

Chief Immigration Officers DAVIS and LAMING, Immigrations Officers, GEAR and WHITING.

The purpose of the visit was to check for illegal working at the premises as information had been
received that this was taking place. A warrant had been obtained under Schedule 2 Paragraph 17(2)
of the Immigration act 1971 AA to enter and search the premises. The person identified on the
warrant was | (12/12/1988) and any persons of Indian sub-continent origin subject to
immigration control, who are working in breach of their leave or temporary release, are otherwise

present in the UK without leave, or have entered the UK illegally.

Briefing was conducted by myself to the team prior to the visit being conducted. Following completion

of this travelled to the address.

Signature: 5%7:5,,5, ....................................... Signature Witnessed bY: ...,
Page 56 24




APPENDEXYYG 11 cont

RESTRICTED (when complete)

Continuation of Statement of: il HENRY ...

Page 2

Officers deployed on arrival at the premise as per the briefing.

Entry was made to the premise via the front door at 1745hrs. On entering found a male behind the
counter of the premise, who stated that the manager was in the kitchen, the manage came out the
kitchen to talk with myself, I now know this male known to be | born 20/02/1962 a

BGD national naturalised in 1995. He questioned the presence of Immigration staff. | informed him
that we had a warrant to enter the premise issued by the courts. Following a sweep of the premise

all staff were brought to the foyer at the front of the business.

There was a total of 4 adults present at the premise.

Officers began conducting checks on the individuals present at the premise.
Following checks, ONE was arrested at the premise.

Details as follows:

Offender 1 born | 2 national of BGD, this individual was an overstayer of his visa which

had expired on the 22/02/2006. |l \vas detained and taken to Chelmsford Custody.

I then conducted Employers questions with the Manager | 2sking him the following

guestions:

Q. What is the name of the business?

A. Stalham Spice LTD, Village Tandoori.

Q. What are the Companies House and VAT numbers of the business?
A. VAT 227 664 84

Q. What is your position here?

A. Manager.

Q-How Inng have you heen \A/nrking here?

Signature: || I Sionature Witnessed by: ...
2004/05(1) P 57 ”e
age




APPENDEXYYG 11 cont

RESTRICTED (when complete)

Continuation of Statement of: il HENRY ...

Page 3

A. I've been here a long time.

Q. Who pays the staff?

A. | pay the staff.

Q. Who employs the staff?

A. | employ the staff.

Q. Do you provide accommodation?

A. They come here from London, sometimes rest upstairs.

Q. What checks do you do before employing someone?

A. Normally | check, but sometimes have people come here to help out.

I could not provide any evidence of staff employment checks when asked. He could only
produce a wage slip for another member of staff on the premises. He stated that i} had only
been at the premises since Monday and was staying until Saturday. This was a different account to

what had been given by the arrested individual.

I sioned the questions asked to him confirming he had understood all the questions and that
the details are true and correct. This is recorded on my PRONTO account under visit reference

EV7-17,780.

Following concluding the visit at the premise | issued and explained the Civil Penalty Referral
Notice to | \'ith the details of the ONE illegal worker that had been encountered at

the premise that evening. He confirmed his understanding of this and | photographed the notice.

This concluded this visit and Officers departed the address at 1825hrs.

Signature: || I Sionature Witnessed by: ...
2004/05(1) P 5g
age 26




APPENDIX IXG 11 (2004)

RESTRICTED (when complete)

WITNESS STATEMENT

(CJ Act 1967, 5.9 MC Act 1980, ss.5A (3) (a) and 5B; MC Rules 1981, r.70)

Statement of: I WHITING ... s

Age if under 18 Over 18 ... (if over 18 insert "over 18") Occupation: Immigration Officer..............

This statement (consisting of 3 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and
I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Signature _ ..................... Date: 03/05/2019

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded (supply witness details on rear)

I am an Immigration Officer currently based at Immigration Compliance & Enforcement (ICE) East of

England, Custom House, Viewpoint Road, Felixstowe, Suffolk, IP11 3RF.

On 02" May 2019 | was tasked to attend an enforcement visit at Village Tandoori, 11 High Street,

Southminster, CMO0 7AA. An Indian restaurant and takeaway specialising in Indian cuisine.

The purpose of the visit was to check for illegal working at the premises as information had been
received that this was taking place. A warrant had been obtained under Schedule 2 Paragraph 17(2)
of the Immigration act 1971 AA to enter and search the premises. The person identified on the
warrant was | 21d any persons of Indian sub-continent origin subject to
immigration control, who are working in breach of their leave or temporary release, are otherwise

present in the UK without leave, or have entered the UK illegally.

A briefing was carried out by the Officer in charge 1/O Henry prior to the visit commencing explaining

the roles and purpose of the visit, | was tasked as arrest one.

At 17:47 hours on that same day in the company of I/O Henry, I/O Gear, CIO Davis, CIO Laming and

HMI Daldry | entered the address. I/O Gear, HMI Daldry, 1/0 Henry and | entered the premises via

Signature: . Signature Witnessed by: ...
Page 59 27




APPENDEXYYG 11 cont

RESTRICTED (when complete)

Continuation of Statement of: |l WHITING....................o

Page 2

the front public entrance whilst CIO Davis and Laming went around the rear of the building to take up
position as rear cover for any individuals present or trying to exit that way. All of us were wearing full

uniform identifying us as immigration officers.

As | entered the premises there were no customers seated at the tables and there was one male

standing behind the till area. He was smartly dressed in trousers, shirt and tie.

I/0 Gear and | immediately made our way to the rear of the premises and into the kitchen where we
encountered three further males. One again was smartly dressed in trousers, shirt and tie while the
other two were wearing chef style white coats and | saw them preparing food that was cooking on
the stove. Both were using cooking utensils to tend to the various dishes that were in pots on the
hob. | saw one (the subject | later questioned) remove a nan bread from the oven and place it into a
foil take away style bag and place it on the side. All males were instructed to shut down the stoves

and we escorted them into the restaurant seating area to be questioned about their status in the UK.

The male subject | questioned had a poor understanding of English, so | used the Big word
translation service to speak with him. When | asked him for his name and date of birth he identified
himself as Offender 1 |l Bangladesh (BGD) | went on to ask him about his immigration
status and he admitted to having no legal basis to be in the UK having overstayed his visit visa. |
initiated checks on home office systems which verified this information. | arrested the subject under
Schedule 2 Paragraph 17 (1) of the immigration act 1971 AA as a person liable to detention under

the same act.
| then went on to pursue facts of him working illegally in the premises. Asking the following questions.
Q. How long have you been working here?

A. One week & four days

Q. What is your job role/ what are your duties?

Signature: _ Signature Witnessed by: .........cccoeeeeiiiiiinennn.

2004/05(1)
Page 60 28




RESTRICTED (when complete)

Continuation of Statement of: |l WHITING....................o

APPENDEXYYG 11 cont

Page 3

A. Washing in the kitchen.

Q. What days/ hours do you work each week?

A. Lunch times for an hour then starts at five in the evening for the

rest of the evening.

Q. Do you work the same hours/ days every week?
A. Works the same hours every week.

Q. How are you paid?

A. Money

Q. How much and how do you receive it?
Who pays you?

A. Cash in hand, the manager.

Q. How much?

A. £280 per week.

Q. Do you pay income tax or have a National Insurance number?
A. No.

Q. What name does the employer know you as?

A. States the manager knows him as | N N

Q. Did you show documents before being offered the job? If so,
what?

A. No he states he lied & told the boss he had permission to work.

Q. Does your employer know you're not allowed to work in the
UK?

A. No.

Signature: _ Signature Witnessed by: .........cccoeeeeiiiiiinennn.

2004/05(1)

Page 61

29




APPENDEXYYG 11 cont

RESTRICTED (when complete)

Continuation of Statement of: |l WHITING....................o

Page 4

| asked the subject where he lived he stated he lived in a bedroom above
the restaurant. An accommodation search was authorised by CIO Davis to
try and locate any relevant travel or identity documents. This was carried
out by HMI Daldry and I/O Gear, but nil was found.

Before leaving the premises I/O Henry served a notice of potential liability
on GGG (< business manager.

The subject was detained and taken to Colchester Police station, he was served with a RED 001,
REDOQO03, IS86, IS 91R, BAIL 401 & BAIL 403. An 1S91 was issued to the custody sergeant

authorising the detention of the subject.

OFFENDER 1 from Bangladesh (BGD): The subject entered the UK on a six month visit
visa that expired on 22/02/2006. He had made no further applications to regulate his stay in the UK
and did not have permission to work. He was an overstayer, an offence under section 24 (1)(b)(1) of

the immigration act 1971 AA.

| took a photograph of the subject dressed in his chef whites and uploaded it as evidence on to the
Pronto visit application along with all questions pertaining to being illegally present and working in

the UK.

This statement is made from notes made at the time or shortly afterwards.

Signature: _ Signature Witnessed by: .........cccoeeeeiiiiiinennn.

2004/05(1)
Page 62 30




AR IAZ

RESTRICTED (when complete) MG11 (Interactive)

Page 1 of 3

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B

URN

Statement of: Nigel DERMOTT

Age if under 18: Over 18 (if over 18 insert ‘over 187  Occupation: DLO 76439

This statement (consisting of 3 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and
belief and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have
wilfully stated in it anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

signature Nigel Dermott (witness) Date:14/05/2019

I, Nigel Dermott, will say as follows:-

1. Tam a retired Essex police Sergeant and now a police licensing officer covering the Essex Police
Districts of Chelmsford and Maldon.

2. My previous police service enables me to advise the licensing trade in respect of best practice
within the Licensing Industry. During the latter part of my service I was project manager for
Essex Police in respect of the Licensing Act 2003 and wrote police policy and delivered training
in preparation to officers in time for the commencement of the Act. That involvement led me to
act as a field officer with the Home Office during the Alcohol Misuse Enforcement Campaigns in
2004/5.

3. Since retirement from police service in 2006 I have maintained contact with licensing matters via
numerous roles of employment including training and policy development for a leading Licensing
Solicitor Advocate before formally taking up my current role as the divisional police licensing
officer covering the Chelmsford and Maldon districts in January 2016.

4. Tam authorised by the Chief Constable of Essex Police to make representations on his behalf
under the Licensing Act 2003.

5. Atabout 17:45hrs on Thursday 2™ May 2019 I was on duty together with Staff 71695 BURKE
when we entered premises at 11, High Street, Southminster, Maldon, Essex CM0 7AA following
an entry by HM Immigration officers under the authority of a warrant issued to enter and search
for illegal workers.

6. Our entry was made under the delegated authority of the Chief Constable under Sec 38 (1)(a) &

(6B)(a) Police Reform Act 2002and schedule 3B Police reform Act 2002 (as inserted by s38 and
schedule 10 Policing and Crime Act 2017).

Signature: ... Signature witnessed by: ...

2013 RESTRICT@Aggeégommete) 31




DDA

RESTRICTED (when complete) MG11 (Interactive)

Page 2 of 3
7. Having entered the premises I met a person by the name of _, who is shown as
being the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) and joint Premises Licence Holder (PLH) of a
licence issued by Maldon District Council 05/00766/LAPRE 208 authorising the sale of alcohol
under the Licensing Act 2003.

8. Tintroduced myself as a police licensing officer and showed him my identification.

9. Talso showed him a copy of my delegated authority as aforementioned and invited him to read it,
which he declined.

10. I requested of Mr - if I could see the summary Premises Licence that he should have had
clearly on display. The licence was located in a cubbyhole at the back of the small bar that was
difficult to get to, let alone able to see. I advised him that he was committing an offence not
having the licence clearly displayed and provided suitable advice for an alternative location.

11. T asked if Mr - had the full licence copy available and he did not. I pointed out that this
was also an offence, not to have the full licence available, to which he made no comment.

12. Mr - clarified that the second Premises Licence Holder — A- Hl - was his brother and
that he was not present.

13. 1 asked if Mr ||l was still the DPS and confirmed that he still lived at the address shown on
the licence and he explained that he had moved to another address about three years previously.

14. I pointed out that this was also an offence, not to update his current address and he indicated that
he was unaware of that requirement.

15. In view of the lack of knowledge being demonstrated around the responsibilities as a PLH and
DPS I asked if he could recall any of the licensing objectives. Despite much prompting Mr

- was unable to recall any.

16. We then had a lengthy discussion around a person found working on the premises by HM
Immigration and that in allowing a person to work illegally he was undermining the licensing
objective in not preventing crime and disorder. As a result he had now been served by the
Immigration Service with notice that a civil penalty would be sought in respect of immigration
offences that he may have committed.

17. I enquired what role the offender had at these premises and he explained that he was on trial for a
week, eventually changing his account in that he was covering staff sickness and had been
temporarily employed to wash-up and had been recommended to him by colleagues based in
London, which is where the offender had been residing.

18. Mr - claimed that the offender had been employed at the premises since the previous
Monday and was leaving on the coming Saturday and that he was responsible for the day-to-day
control of the premises which included the employment of workers.

19. Mr - identified the name of the person who would normally have been working at the
premises and stated he was aware of Home Office Guidance in respect of the employment of
illegal workers but that on this occasion he had taken the word of the offender that he was

Signature: ... Signature witnessed Dy: ........cccvviieiiiiiiii

2010/11 RESTRICTED (when complete)
Page 64 32




RESTRICTED (when complete) “1"MGH1 (interactive)
Page 3 of 3
permitted to do so. Neither had any previous personal references or home address details been

sought.

20. Mr [ confirmed that he had not made any enquiries via any third party checking service,
check his national insurance or request a tax code.

21. Mr - confirmed that none of his workers had any employment contract in respect of
sickness benefits or leave etc.

22. Mr - stated he was paying the offender £80 cash in hand, along with providing
accommodation and food for working on three days that week between Spm — 10pm, which if
true would equate to £5.66 per hour as a ‘best case’ scenario.

23. Mr |l had provided no training in respect of food handling or food hygiene etc but
confirmed that the offender was not involved in the service of alcohol.

24. At the conclusion of the meeting I informed Mr - that I would need to consult with my

manager and that it was highly likely that on behalf of the Chief Constable I would seek to review
the premises licence, which would be my recommendation.

Nigel Dermott

Signature: ... Signature witnessed Dy: ........cccvviieiiiiiiii

2010/11 RESTRICTED (when complete)
Page 65 33




APPENDIX D

PHOTO OF IMMIGRATION OFFENDER

Page 66 34



g

Immigration
Enforcement

Employer registered address:
\/m otV amssoll

W Aecan  Ssaser
&.L’MM S ST

Business type: Sele-Trader/Limited Company

FranChiSeLQRREr . .......ccooviceeveeeiiveereneeieerecssaeeseeeeenes

VATNo: 2727 L3t %
Company number:

Director(s)/Owner(s)E—

Referral Notice
lllegal Working Civil Penalty

This is an important notice. Please do not ignore it.
Your case will be referred for consideration of your
liability for a civil penalty.

This Referral Notice Is issued in respect of (a) suspected

breach(es) under section 15 of the Immigration, Asylum and
Nationality Act 2006.

Tasking Reference: C\/:YT 3 \ A0
Notice given date: ©72|oS l'lC) \S

| O W a2 =

Issued to:

Position:

We have encountered suspected illegal working

We encountered (a) suspected breach(es) of section 15 on

address: M acE TTasocoy | L

HUGA STREET, SomMArmidsTe2

olos \zo1S  at the following business

Who we suspect of working illegally

Nationality | DOB Reason

Names of iiiiiiiii ’|||igal workers

e |zlulard No right to work/Workingrin-breaoh.

—
.

o =

No right to work/Working in breach

!
]
]
|
1
]
L ]
{
1
[

No right to work/Working in breach

No right to work/Working in breach

No right to work/Working in breach

No right to work/Working in breach

No right to work/Working in breach

o Nl s o

No right to work/Working in breach

Reason for
referral

Your case will be referred to the Home Office’s Civil Penalty Compliance Team which will
consider your liability for a civil penalty for employing the identified suspected illegal worker(s).
It is illegal to employ an adult subject to immigration control if he has not been granted leave to
enter or remain in the UK or his leave to enter or remain is invalid or has ceased to have effect,
or he is subject to a condition preventing him from accepting the employment in question.

What this

S0 your penalty level.
means i 4

The Civil Penalty Compliance Team will consider whether you are liable for a civil penalty, and if

¢ A Civil Penalty Notice will be issued if you are found liable. This Notice will require you
to pay a penalty for a specified amount by a specified due date.

e A Warning Notice may be issued if you meet the mitigating criteria set out in our Code
of practice on preventing illegal working which is on www.GOV.UK.

e A No Action Notice will be issued if you are not liable for a civil penalty. This Notice will
inform you that no civil penalty action will be taken against you on this occasion, and that
your case has been closed.

CPCT RN V1.0

BBy

Nov8mber 2016

C = QAR .



APPENDIX D
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Status Verification, Enquiries
and Checking

Subject 1 filled : To be completed by the Police

Justification and legislation must be completed or
Home Office ref (if known)
Police Officer | 42076439
Police email address | XXXX. XXXXXX@essex.pnn.police.uk
Subject’s name | XXXXXXXXXX
Subject’s nationality | Bangladeshi
Subject’s date of birth | XX/XX/XXXX
Male / female | Male
Subject’s address | XXXXXXX, London
Found working at Village Tandoori 11, High Street, Southminster, Maldon
Essex CMO 7AA
Justification / legislation: Subject of a Premises Licence review application under the Licensing Act
2003 following warrant executed by HM Immigration where the above person was believed to have
overstayed their visa since 2006 and found illegally working. These matters need clarification before the
review application can be submitted.

Below: Home Office official use only

Cid/Personal ID/HO | A1255347

Additional information

Check(s) requested | Response
Confirmation of | pate of birth XXIXXIXXXX
Right to work Does the individual have the right No
to work in the UK?
Recourse to public | Does the individual have recourse No
funds to public funds in the UK?
Other Home Office computer records confirm that the above named subject has no valid

leave in the United Kingdom.

Home Office computer records show on 07/05/2019 the above named subject
submitted an application for Asylum. This remains under consideration.

Unfortunately, | am not in a position to be able to advise you of the time scales of
when a decision will be made or what the outcome of the case may be as each
decision is reached after careful consideration of all the facts.

Standard Disclaimer

The above information is confidential and forwarded on the understanding that it is not disclosed to any third party.
Should there be any ensuing criminal legal proceedings, any of the above information may only be submitted in the form
of an official Home Office witness statement, which you can obtain through this office. If a witness statement is required,
please send this form by email to: ICESSVECStatements@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk.

Page 1 of 1

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
Page 68 36



APPENDIX D

AN EMPLOYER’S GUIDE TO RIGHT TO
WORK CHECKS

16 August 2017
Produced by the Home Office

© Crown copyright 2017

Page 69 37



APPENDIX D

Contents
PR (1o o ¥ (o 1 ) o SRR 4
Summary of changes in this issue of the guUIde ..o 4
Forwhom is this guUIde releVant? ... 5
How should this QUIAE DE USEA7.......oee e e 5
Who should read thiS QUIAE? ...ttt ne e eneans 6
References in thiS QUIAE ........oueieeeeceee ettt neennens 6
2. Whatis aright to WOrk ChECK?.........c.ooeieeeeeeeeee e e e 7
3. Whydo you need to dO CheCKS? ... 8
Wider sanctions againstillegal WOrking ...........ccooorioniiirieesee e 9
The offence of illegal WOIKING ........c.ooeiiieie e 9
The offence of employing anillegal WOrKer ...........coovouieiicie e 10
Closure notices and cOmMpPlianNCe OFAEIS .......ooeeiieiieeeeee e 10
Preventing illegal working in licensed SECIOrS ........ccoviiiriiinicie e 11
4. Who do you coONdUCE ChECKS ON? ......ouiiiiiieeeiee e e 12
5. How do you CONAUCE ChECKST .......eeoeice ettt e 13
lllustration 1: Summaryofa rightto work check...........ccoovoiiiiiceeeee, 13
lllustration 2: The 3-StEP CheCK ... s 14
Step 1: Acceptable dOCUMENTS ..o e 16
Step 2: Checking the validity 0Of dOCUMENLS .......oouiiiiiiiiiee e 16
Step 3: RetainNiNg @VIAENCE ......c..ooeieieeee et ns 17
Additional evidence from STUAENLS .........cccoviriiieicee s 18
When to contact the Home Office to verify right to WOrk .........ccooiiiiinie 19
Biometric Residence PermitS..........cco oo 21
6. When do You CONAUCE ChECKS? .......oouiiiiiiiee et 23
Table 1: FOHOW-UP CRECKS ......ceoeeeeeeeeeee ettt e 23
Ta R i g aToTr=T o] o [Tez= 1 (To] - J R 24
Appeals and Administrative REVIEWS .........cc.ooiieee e 25
Transfer of UNertakingsS ..o 25
Changes in the Employer’s legal constitution ... 25
7. Do youhave any QUESHIONS? .....ccoooiiiiiiecece ettt e 27
G T N 1= NS 28
Lists of acceptable documents for right to work checks............cccooiiiiiiciice 28
N ] =Gl S 30
Employment of specific categories of WOrKers..........coooienreiisee e 30

Page 70 38



APPENDIX D

0 (6 1= o SNSRI 30
LA 0 F= 1= 0 4 1= o S 30
Impact of a change in circumstances on a Tier 4 points based system student’s right
100 TV 0 T 5 S 31
Nationals from the European Economic Area (EEA) and their Family Members .............. 33
e 7= (T 0= PSRRI 33
EEA nationals who may work without restriCtion: ... 34
Croatian NAtIONAIS.........eieeeeceeee ettt e e et e st e e be e beeereeaneeeareens 34
Non-EEA Family Members of EEA nationals ..o 35
Non-EEA Nationals with a Derivative Right of Residence..........ccccccoeieiiiieieeiecce e, 35
Residence Cards (biometric format).........coooeieiicce e 36
Certificate Of APPICALION .......o e 36
Additional INfOrMAtION ........c..oieee e e eneas 37
Y 0= o] (=1 LT | SOOI 38
RV o181 =1 YA e 5 <SSR 38
Employment of other Categories.........o e 39

Page 71 39



APPENDIX D

1. Introduction

The ability to work illegally is a key driver of illegal migration; it encourages people to break
the UK’s immigration laws and provides the practical means for migrants to remain
unlawfully in the country. It encourages them to take risks by putting their lives in the
hands of unscrupulous people smugglers and leaves them vulnerable to exploitative
employers. lllegal working results in businesses that are not playing by the rules,
undercutting legitimate businesses that are. It also negatively impacts on the wages of
lawful workers and is linked to other labour market abuse such as tax evasion, breach of
the national minimum wage and exploitative working conditions.

All employers, irrespective of size or sector, are required to prevent the employment of
illegal workers. They should fulfill this duty by carrying out a simple 3 step check to confirm
that a potential employee is entitled to work in the UK.

The law on preventing illegal working is set out in sections 15 to 25 of the Immigration,
Asylum and Nationality Act 2006 (the 2006 Act) and sections 24 and 24B of the
Immigration Act 1971.

The 2006 Act replaced section 8 of the Asylum and Immigration Act 1996 (the 1996 Act) in
respect of employment commencing on or after 29 February 2008. Under section 15 of the
2006 Act, an employer may be liable for a civil penalty if they employ someone who does
not have the right to undertake the work in question. They may be excused from paying a
penalty if they carry out prescribed document checks on people before employing them to
ensure they are lawfully allowed to work. These checks should be repeated in respect of
all those who have time-limited permission to work in the UK.

On 16 May 2014, changes came into force to strengthen and simplify the civil penalty
scheme for employers, and this included some changes to the document checks employers

are required to undertake to be excused from paying a civil penalty liability. This guidance
was last amended in July 2016.

Summary of changes in this issue of the guide

The most significant updates contained in this guidance relate to:

(i) Application Registration Cards (ARC) which are now issued as biometric documents
containing an expiry date;

(i) advice in respect of those who claim to have a right to work as a non European
Economic Area (EEA) family member of an EEA national;

(iii)  advice in respect of voluntary work and being a volunteer;
(iv)  illegal working measures introduced by the Immigration Act 2016: closure notices

and compliance orders, and immigration checks in the licensing regimes for taxis and
private hire vehicles and alcohol and late night refreshment; and

Page 72 40


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/13/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/13/contents

APPENDIX D

(V) the employment of international students.

For whom is this guide relevant?

This guide applies to checks required on or after 16 May 2014 to establish or retain an
excuse from having to pay a civil penalty for employing a person who is not permitted to
work for you.

Where the employment commenced on or after 29 February 2008 and a statutory excuse
was established for the duration of that person’s employment before 16 May 2014, the
document checks set out in the ‘Full guide for employers on preventing illegal working in
the UK’ published in October 2013 continue to apply.

This guide applies to employers who employ staff under a contract of employment, service
or apprenticeship, whether expressed or implied and whether oral or in writing. However,
even if you are not the direct employer of the workers involved in your business, there are
compelling reasons why you should seek to know that your workers have a right to work. If
illegal workers are removed from your business, it may disrupt your operations and result in
reputational damage. There could be adverse impacts on your health and safety and
safeguarding obligations, as well as the potential invalidation of your insurance if the
identity and skill levels of your workers are not as claimed. Accordingly, you should check
that your contractors conduct the correct right to work checks on people they employ. You
may also wish to use this guidance when you use workers who have a genuine self
employment status.

How should this guide be used?

This guide sets out what an employer needs to know about conducting right to work
checks. It provides guidance on what right to work checks are and why it is important that
employers do them. It also explains on whom an employer needs to make checks, how
frequently they should perform the checks, and how to do the checks correctly.

This guide has been issued alongside other guidance, Codes of Practice and tools. This
collection comprises:

. The online interactive tool ‘Check if someone can work in the UK’;
o The online interactive tool ‘Employer Checking Service Enquiries’;
o Carry out a right to work check: a 3 step guide;

o An employer's ‘Right to Work Checklist’;

o Acceptable right to work documents: an employer’s guide;

Frequently asked questions;
Code of practice on preventing illegal working: Civil penalty scheme for employers;

o Code of practice for employers: Avoiding unlawful discrimination while preventing
illegal working; and
o An employer’'s guide to the administration of the civil penalty scheme.

They can be found on the illegal working penalties page of GOV.UK.

Page 73 4


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/preventing-illegal-working-guidance-for-employers-october-2013
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/preventing-illegal-working-guidance-for-employers-october-2013
https://www.gov.uk/legal-right-work-uk
https://www.gov.uk/employee-immigration-employment-status
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/533771/Right_to_Work_Factsheet_A5_June2016.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/right-to-work-checklist
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/acceptable-right-to-work-documents-an-employers-guide
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/preventing-illegal-working-frequently-asked-questions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/preventing-illegal-working-code-of-practice-for-employers
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/right-to-work-checks-code-of-practice-on-avoiding-discrimination
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/right-to-work-checks-code-of-practice-on-avoiding-discrimination
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/illegal-working-fines-employers-guide
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/employers-illegal-working-penalties

APPENDIX D

Who should read this guide?

Employers, including their Human Resource staff and those staff within the same business
with delegated responsibility for the recruitment and employment of individuals, should
read this guide to understand their responsibility to correctly carry out right to work checks,
and therefore ensure compliance with the law.

References in this guide

‘We’ or ‘us’ in this guide mean the Home Office. References to ‘you’ and ‘your’ mean the
employer.

‘Days’ means calendar days, i.e. including Saturdays, Sundays and bank holidays.

‘Employee’ means someone who is employed under a contract of employment, service or
apprenticeship. This can be expressed or implied, oral or in writing.

‘Breach’ or ‘breaches’ mean that section 15 of the Immigration, Asylum and Nationality Act
2006 has been contravened by employing someone who is:

o subject to immigration control; and
aged over 16; and
not allowed to carry out the work in question because either they have not been
granted leave to enter or remain in the UK or because their leave to enter or remain
inthe UK:
— isinvalid;
— has ceased to have effect (meaning it no longer applies) whether by reason of
curtailment, revocation, cancellation, passage of time or otherwise; or
— is subject to a condition preventing them from accepting the employment.

A breach also refers to the contravention of the Accession of Croatia (Immigration and
Worker Authorisation) Regulations 2013.

‘Employment of illegal workers within the previous three years’ means you have been
issued with a civil penalty or warning notice in respect of a breach of the Act or the
Accession of Croatia Regulations 2013 for one or more workers which occurred within
three years of the current breach and where your liability was maintained following the
exercise of any objection and/or appeal, or you have committed an offence under section
21 of the 2006 Act, as amended by the 2016 Act, during the same period.

‘A current document’ means a document that has not expired.

Page 74 42


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2013/9780111539156
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2013/9780111539156

APPENDIX D

2. What is a right to work check?

As an employer, you have an important role to play in preventing illegal working by
undertaking simple checks on your employees’ right to work in the UK.

A right to work check means that you check a document which is acceptable for showing
permission to work. You must do this before you employ a person to ensure they are
legally allowed to do the work in question for you. It is not enough to simply undertake the
check on the first day of employment if the employment has already started. You are also
required to conduct a follow-up check on people who have time-limited permission to work
inthe UK.

Checking a person’s documents to determine if they have the right to carry out the type of
work you are offering comprises three key steps:

1. Obtain the person’s original documents as specified in this guidance;
2. Check the validity of the documents in the presence of the holder; and
3. Make and retain a clear copy, and make a record of the date of the check.

You are responsible for conducting the visual inspection of the documents presented to
you. You are only required to verify someone’s right to work with our Employer Checking
Service in three specified circumstances. These are set out in the section on our
verification checks.

You can find detailed information on how to correctly conduct right to work checks and a list
of acceptable documents later in this guidance. A separate document: ‘An employer’s
guide to acceptable right to work documents’ contains example images of the documents
contained in the lists.

Page 75 43


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/carry-out-a-right-to-work-check
https://www.gov.uk/employee-immigration-employment-status
https://www.gov.uk/employee-immigration-employment-status
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/acceptable-right-to-work-documents-an-employers-guide
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/acceptable-right-to-work-documents-an-employers-guide

APPENDIX D

3. Why do you need to do checks?

As an employer, you have a duty to prevent illegal working. You should conduct document
checks to make it harder for people with no right to work in the UK to unlawfully obtain or
stay in employment, and to make it easier for you to ensure that you only employ people
who have permission to do the work in question.

It is illegal to employ someone aged 16 or over subject to immigration control and who is
not allowed to undertake the work in question.

If you carry out document checks as set out in this guide, you will have a statutory excuse
against a liability for a civil penalty. This means that if we find that you have employed
someone who does not have the right to work, but you have correctly conducted document
checks as required, you will not receive a civil penalty for that illegal worker.

As the employer, you are liable for the civil penalty even if the actual check is performed by
a member of your staff. You are unable to establish a statutory excuse when the check is
performed by a third party, such as a recruitment agency, if you are the employer.

If you fail to carry out these checks correctly, or at all, and you are found employing
someone illegally, we will take tough action against you. In this respect, we have
strengthened our legislation and operational enforcement response to illegal working and it
is now highly likely that employers and workers involved in illegal working will be detected
and tough sanctions will be applied. lllegal working is increasingly being tackled through a
‘whole government approach’, with greater co-ordination across agencies in government,
including HMRC, to ensure that illegal working is detected more effectively, through the
sharing of intelligence and joint enforcement operations. More and more frequently,
government departments are sharing data to prevent or stop access to benefits, services
and work by people who are disqualified by reason of their immigration status. When
illegal working is identified, the fullest range of sanctions is applied.

If you know or have reasonable cause to believe that you are employing someone who is
not allowed to carry out the work in question, you will not have a statutory excuse,
regardless of whether you have conducted document checks.

You will commit a criminal offence under section 21 of the 2006 Act, as amended by
section 35 of the Immigration Act 2016, if you know or have reasonable cause to believe
that you are employing an illegal worker. You may face up to 5 years’ imprisonment

and/or an unlimited fine.

We will determine the level of your breach and the amount of any civil penalty for which
you may be liable will be determined on a case-by-case basis. In doing so, we will refer to
the Consideration Framework and Civil Penalty Calculator set out in our ‘Code of
practice on preventing illegal working: Civil penalty scheme for employers’ published in
May 2014. If you are found liable, you will be issued with a Civil Penalty Notice setting
out the total penalty amount you are required to pay, and the date by which you must pay
it. It will also inform you how you can exercise your right to object, following which you will
be able to appeal.

Page 76 44


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/preventing-illegal-working-code-of-practice-for-employers
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/preventing-illegal-working-code-of-practice-for-employers

APPENDIX D

The employer must always object against the penalty notice before appealing to the court,
except if served with a penalty notice for a higher amount following an objection.

Further information is contained in the ‘Employer's guide to the administration of the civil
penalty scheme’ which sets out in more detail the stages of the civil penalty process, how
the penalty is calculated, the range of notices you may receive and the deadlines by which
you need to take action at each stage.

Wider sanctions against illegal working

If you are an employer who is subject to immigration control, you should also be aware that
if you are liable for a civil penalty, this will be recorded on Home Office systems and may
be taken into account when we consider any future immigration application that you make.

If you are liable for a civil penalty, it could also affect your ability to sponsor migrants who
come to the UK in the future, including those you wish to work for you under Tiers 2 or 5 of
the Points Based System, or to hold a Gangmaster’s licence. If an employee is
undertaking a role which is different from that for which the certificate of sponsorship was
issued and permission to enter or remain was granted, you are employing the worker
illegally. Further information on sponsoring migrants may be found here. Having a civil
penalty may also affect your ability to obtain or retain a licence in the private hire and taxi
sector and the alcohol and late night refreshment sector.

The offence of illegal working

Working illegally is a criminal offence. lllegal workers face having their wages seized. They
may also be prosecuted and can be imprisoned for up to 6 months.

As a result of an amendment to the Immigration Act 1971 (Section 24B), itis now a criminal
offence to work illegally in the UK. A person commits this offence if they require
immigration permission to live and work in the UK and they work when they know, or have
reasonable cause to believe, that they have no permission to do so. This means that they:

o have not been granted leave to enter or remainin the UK; or
. their leave to enter or remaininthe UK
— isinvalid,

— has ceased to have effect (whether by reason of curtailment, revocation,
cancellation, passage of time, or otherwise), or
— is subject to a condition preventing the person from doing work of that kind.

The offence has a wide reach. As well as work under a contract of employment, the
offence of illegal working also applies to self employment, and covers both informal as well
as formal working arrangements.

The new offence strengthens our ability to seize wages from illegal working as the
proceeds of crime and to pursue the confiscation of assets. In England and Wales, the
offence carries a maximum penalty of six months’ imprisonment and/or an unlimited fine.
In Scotland and Northern Ireland, the offence carries a maximum penalty of six months’
imprisonment and/or a fine of the statutory maximum.

9

Page 77 45


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/illegal-working-fines-employers-guide
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/illegal-working-fines-employers-guide
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/sponsorship-information-for-employers-and-educators

APPENDIX D

The offence of employing an illegal worker

You will commit a criminal offence under section 21 of the 2006 Act, as amended by
section 35 of the Immigration Act 2016, if you know or have reasonable cause to believe
that you are employing an illegal worker. You may face up to 5 years’ imprisonment
and/or an unlimited fine.

The pre-existing offence of knowingly employing an illegal worker, set out in section 21 of
the 2006 Act, was amended by section 35 of the 2016 Act. An employer can now be
prosecuted for employing an illegal worker if they know, or have reasonable cause to
believe, that the person has no right to do the work in question. This means that it is no
longer necessary for Immigration Enforcement to prove that the employer knew that the
employee had no permission to work. The amended offence enables employers to be
prosecuted where they had reason to believe the employment was illegal, but, for example,
deliberately ignored information or circumstances that would have given the employer
reasonable cause to believe that the employee lacked permission to work. The maximum
prison sentence for this offence has beenincreased from two to five years.

We will continue to apply the civil penalty as a sanction in most routine cases involving the
employment of illegal workers. However, in more serious cases, prosecution may be
considered where it is deemed the appropriate response to the non compliance
encountered.

Closure notices and compliance orders

The 2016 Act (Section 38 and Schedule 6) introduced illegal working closure notice and
compliance order provisions to provide a power to deal with those e mployers who have
continued to flout the UK’s laws by using illegal labour where previous civil and/or criminal
sanctions have not curbed their non-compliant behaviour.

The provisions commenced on 1 December 2016. The closure notice is a fast power which
may be used to close premises for a limited time where an employer (or a person
connected with the employer) operating at the premises is found to be employing illegal
workers and has been previously non-compliant with illegal working legislation.

The notice prohibits access to the premises and paid or voluntary work on the premises,
unless it is authorised in writing by an immigration officer. The closure notice does not
prevent access to the premises by any person who habitually lives there. In addition to the
issue of the notice, consideration will also be given to the service of penalties or
prosecution for illegal working and other immigration offences.

Whenever an illegal working closure notice has been issued, and which has not been
cancelled, an immigration officer must make an application by complaint to a Magistrates’
Court for a compliance order. The application is sent to the court and served on the
respondent before the hearing, and forms the basis of the application to the court for the
compliance order. The aim of a compliance order is to prevent an employer operating at
the premises from employing illegal workers. The employer is placed under special
conditions to support compliance, as directed by the court, and may be inspected by
immigration officers.

10

Page 78 46


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/608708/Closure_notice_and_compliance_order_guidance_Jan_17.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/608708/Closure_notice_and_compliance_order_guidance_Jan_17.pdf

APPENDIX D

Preventing illegal working in licensed sectors

The 2016 Act amended existing licensing regimes in high risk sectors of the economy
(private hire vehicles and taxi sector and the alcohol and late night refreshment sector).
Licences will not be issued to those who break the UK’s immigration laws, and may be
revoked where an existing licence holder commits immigration crime or receives a civil
penalty for employing illegal workers.

Since 1 December 2016, immigration checks have been a mandatory part of the licensing
regime for taxis and private hire vehicles. Applicants need to provide evidence of their right
to work in the UK and licences will not be issued to those who do not have the right to
work. Where immigration permission is time-limited, a licence will not be issued for a
period that exceeds this period. Where the holder of a licence breaches immigration laws
or receives a civil penalty, this will be grounds for licensing authorities to review, suspend
or revoke a licence. If immigration permission is curtailed (cut short), the holder of the
licence will be committing an offence if they do not return the licence to the licensing
authority, for which they may be fined.

The 2016 Act amended the Licensing Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) to make immigration checks
a mandatory part of the licensing regime for premises licensed to sell alcohol and late night
refreshment (food and hot drinks served between 2300 and 0500). Immigration offences
and penalties are grounds on which a licence may be refused or revoked, and we are now
a designated responsible authority. As a result, we are notified of premises and some
personal licence applications in the same way as the police. This allows us to make
representations when we believe that to grant a licence will be prejudicial to preventing
immigration crime and illegal working in licensed premises. We now have the same power
of entry as licensing enforcement officers to facilitate joint operations and inspections for
immigration offences in relation to the licensable activity.

Provisions for England and Wales are set out in the amended 2003 Act and commenced in
April 2017 in England and Wales. Equivalent provisions in regulations will be made for
Scotland and Northern Ireland later in 2017.

If you fail to adequately carry out a right to work check and are found to have employed an
illegal worker, you will face robust sanctions which could include:

o a civil penalty of up to £20,000 per illegal worker;

o a criminal conviction carrying a prison sentence of up to 5 years and an unlimited
fine;

closure of the business and an application for a court compliance order;
disqualification as a director;

not being able to sponsor migrants; and

seizure of earnings made as a result of illegal working.

11

Page 79 47


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licensing-authority-guide-to-right-to-work-checks
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licensing-authority-guide-to-right-to-work-checks

APPENDIX D

4. Who do you conduct checks on?

Do not simply check the status of those who appear to be migrants. Treat all potential
employees in the same way.

You should conduct right to work checks on all potential employees. This means you
should ask all people you are considering employing to provide you with their documents.
To ensure that you do not discriminate against anyone, you should treat all job applicants in
the same way at each stage of your recruitment processes.

You should not make assumptions about a person’s right to work in the UK or their
immigration status on the basis of their colour, nationality, ethnic or national origins, accent
or length of time they have been resident in the UK.

The ‘Code of practice for employers: Avoiding unlawful discrimination while preventing
ilegal working’ aims to strengthen safeguards against unlawful discrimination when
recruiting people and complying with your duty to conduct right to work checks. We
strongly recommend that you refer to this Code when conducting document checks.

If you breach this Code of practice, it may be used as evidence in legal proceedings.
Courts and Employment Tribunals may take account of any part of the Code relevant to
matters of discrimination.

You may face a civil penalty if you do not carry out a check on someone you have assumed
has the right to work for you, but is found to be anillegal worker.

12

Page 80 48


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/right-to-work-checks-code-of-practice-on-avoiding-discrimination
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/right-to-work-checks-code-of-practice-on-avoiding-discrimination

APPENDIX D

5. How do you conduct checks?

Remember to obtain, check and copy the appropriate documents. By doing so, and
recording the outcome, you will prevent liability for a civil penalty.

There are three basic steps to conducting a right to work check. Remember three
keywords:

1. Obtain
2.Check
3.Copy

Further information is contained in Frequently Asked Questions.

lllustration 1. Summary of a rightto work check

Obtain
Obtain original versions of one or more
acceptable documents.

Copy

make and retain a clear copy, and record

Wee=4{ . the date the check was made.

lllustration 2 explains in more detail what you need to do in each of the 3 steps to correctly
conduct a check, and establish a statutory excuse.

13

Page 81 49


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/preventing-illegal-working-frequently-asked-questions

APPENDIX D

lllustration 2: The 3-Step Check

Step 1 Obtain

You must obtain original documents from either List A or List B of acceptable
documents at Annex A.

Step 2 Check

You must check that the documents are genuine and that the person presenting them is
the prospective employee or employee, the rightful holder and allowed to do the type of
work you are offering. You must check that:

1. photographs and dates of birth are consistent across documents and with the
person’s appearance in order to detect impersonation;

2. expiry dates for permission to be in the UK have not passed;

3 any work restrictions to determine if they are allowed to do the type of work on

offer (for students who have limited permission to work during term-times, you
must also obtain, copy and retain details of their academic term and vacation
times covering the duration of their period of study in the UK for which they will be

employed);

4. the documents are genuine, have not been tampered with and belong to the
holder; and

5. the reasons for any difference in names across documents (e.g. original marriage

certificate, divorce decree absolute, deed poll). These supporting documents must
also be photocopied and a copy retained.

Step 3 Copy

You must make a clear copy of each document in a format which cannot manually be

altered, and retain the copy securely: electronically or in hardcopy. You must also retain
a secure record of the date on which you made the check.

You must copy and retain:

1. Passports: any page with the document expiry date, the holder’'s nationality, date
of birth, signature, leave expiry date, biometric details, photograph and any page
containing information indicating the holder has an entitlement to enter or remain in
the UK (visa or entry stamp) and undertake the work in question (the front cover no
longer has to be copied).

2. All other documents: the document in full, including both sides of a Biometric
Residence Permit, Application Registration Card and a Residence Card (biometric
format).

You must retain copies securely for not less than two years after the employment has
come to anend. The copy must then be securely destroyed.

14

Page 82 50




APPENDIX D

We recommend you use our:

o employers’ ‘Right to Work Checklist' to ensure you have correctly carried out all the
steps you need to; or
o use our online interactive tool ‘Check if someone can work in the UK’ which will take

you through the process by asking you a series of questions.

Both will help you confirm that you have undertaken each step correctly to establish your
statutory excuse.

15
Page 83 51


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/right-to-work-checklist
https://www.gov.uk/legal-right-work-uk

APPENDIX D

Step 1: Acceptable documents

The documents you may accept from a person to demonstrate their right to work are set out
in two lists — List A and List B. These are set out in Annex A to this guidance. You must
obtain an original document or document combination specified in one of these lists in order
to comply with step 1 of the 3-step check.

List A contains the range of documents you may accept for a person who has a permanent
right to work in the UK. If you conduct the right to work checks correctly before employment
begins, you will establish a continuous statutory excuse for the duration of that person’s
employment with you. You do not have to conduct any further checks on this individual.

List B contains a range of documents you may accept for a person who has a temporary
right to work in the UK. If you conduct the right to work checks correctly you will establish a
time-limited statutory excuse. You will be required to conduct a follow-up check in order to
retain your statutory excuse. This should be undertaken in the same way as the original
check.

More detailed information about all of these acceptable documents, together with examples
of what they look like can be found in ‘An employer's guide to acceptable right to work
documents’.

Ensure you obtain an original document that is contained in list A or list B, including a
passport or biometric residence permit.

Step 2: Checking the validity of documents

When you are checking the validity of the documents, you must ensure that you do this in
the presence of the holder. This can be a physical presence in person or via a live video
link. In both cases you must be in physical possession of the original documents. You may
not rely on the inspection of the document via a live video link or by checking a faxed or
scanned copy of the document.

The responsibility for checking the document is yours. Whilst it may be delegated to your
members of staff, you will remain liable for the penalty. You may not delegate this
responsibility to a third party. Whilst you may use a third party to provide support in terms of
technical knowledge or specialised equipment to prevent the employment of illegal workers,
the responsibility of performing the check to prevent a civil penalty liability will remain with
you as the employer.

If you are given a false document, you will only be liable for a civil penalty if it is reasonably
apparent that it is false. This means that a person who is untrained in the identification of
false documents, examining it carefully, but briefly, and without the use of technological aids
could reasonably be expected to realise that the documentin questionis not genuine.

You will not obtain a statutory excuse if:

o the check is performed by an individual who is not employed by you;

16

Page 84 52


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/acceptable-right-to-work-documents-an-employers-guide
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/acceptable-right-to-work-documents-an-employers-guide

APPENDIX D

. it is reasonably apparent that the person presenting the document is not the person
referred to in that document, even if the document itself is genuine. You may be
liable to prosecution if you know or have reasonable cause to believe that the
individual does not have immigration permission to work;;

o you know that the individual is not permitted to undertake the work in question; or
o you knew that the documents were false or did not rightfully belong to the holder.

In order to establish a statutory excuse, you are required only to conduct an examination of
the document and to check this against the holder of that document. You may, however,
wish to consider using commercially available document validation technology to help check
the authenticity of biometric documents presented to you, notably passports and biometric
residence permits (BRPs). Guidance about using such technology is available here.

You may also wish to read the online guidance about recognising fraudulent identity
documents. Further advice about document fraud and illustrations of documents which are
suitable for right to work checks are available in the ‘Employer’s guide to acceptable right to
work documents’. Guidance on examining identity documents may be found here.

If someone gives you a false document or a genuine document that does not belong to
them, you should use this link to report the individual to us, or call our Sponsorship,
Employer and Education Helpline on 0300 123 4699, (Monday to Thursday, 9am to 5pm,

Friday, 9am to 4:30pm).

If you do not employ the person, or you have employed them having made the correct
checks, you will be excused from paying a civil penalty.

Step 3: Retaining evidence

You must keep a record of every document you have checked. This can be a hardcopy or a
scanned copy in a format which cannot be manually altered, such as a jpeg or pdf document.
You should keep the copies securely for the duration of the person’s employment and for a
further two years after they stop working for you. You should also be able to produce these
document copies quickly in the event that you are requested to show them to demonstrate
that you have performed a right to work check and retain a statutory excuse. By doing this,
we will be able to check whether you have complied with the law if we find that someone is,
or has been working for you illegally.

You must also make a contemporaneous record of the date on which you conducted your
check. This can be by either making a dated declaration on the copy or by holding a

separate record, securely, which can be shown to us upon request to establish your
statutory excuse. This date may be written on the document copy as follows: ‘the date on

which this right to work check was made: [insert date]’ or a manual or digital record may
be made at the time you conduct and copy the documents which includes this information.
You must be able to show this evidence if requested to do so in order to demonstrate that
you have established a statutory excuse. You must repeat this process in respect of any
follow up check.

17

Page 85 53


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/document-scanners
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/employers-illegal-working-penalties
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/employers-illegal-working-penalties
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/recognising-fraudulent-identity-documents
https://www.gov.uk/report-immigration-crime

APPENDIX D

You may face a civil penalty if you do not record the date on which the check was
performed.

Simply writing a date on the copy document does not, in itself, confirm that this is the
actual date when the check was undertaken. If you write a date on the copy document,

you must also record the fact that this is the date on which you conducted the check.

Additional evidence from students

International students are often able to work part-time during their studies in the UK and full-
time during their vacations and any period of time between completing their studies and the
expiry of their permission to be in the UK. Some international students have no right to work
atall. Annex B contains further information about permitted employment for students.

Where a student has permission to study under Tier 4 of the Points Based System, their
conditions allow them to work when they are “following a course of study”:

° at the appropriate academic level; and
o with a sponsor of the specified academic status that permits them to work the number
of hours that they are working.

Their entitlement to work full time during vacations and during the period of permission that
is granted before a course begins and after the course ends only applies if they are
following, or have completed, the required course of study.

When you conduct checks and are presented with documents indicating that the holder is a
student with a limited right to work in the UK during term time, you are required to obtain
and retain evidence of their academic term and vacation dates. This will make it easier for
you to know when an international student employee may work part-time for you, and when
they are permitted to work full-time.

You should request this evidence from the student. This evidence should originate from the
education institution which is sponsoring the student. You may obtain the dates for the
entire duration of the course or, if this is not possible, you may obtain and copy them
annually providing the information you hold is current at the time of the student's
employment.

We consider acceptable evidence to be one of the following:
A printout from the student’s education institution’s website or other material
published by the institution setting out its timetable for the student’s course of study

(you should check the website to confirm the link is genuine); or

A copy of a letter or email addressed to the student from their education institution
confirming term time dates for the student's course; or

A letter addressed to you as the employer from the education institution confirming
the term time dates for the student’s course.

18

Page 86 54



APPENDIX D

We would expect the evidence in paragraph (i) above to be readily available for most
students and therefore will be provided to you in most cases. In exceptional circumstances,
for example where the student is following a course timetable which differs from that
published, you may need to obtain bespoke evidence from the sponsor. It is important to
remember that you require this evidence in order to establish and retain a statutory excuse
against a civil penalty and we may check this evidence.

You may face a civil penalty if your Tier 4 student employee exceeds the maximum period
they are permitted to work during term time in any given period of a week running from
Monday to Sunday.

Where you are employing a student on a work placement which forms an integral part of
their course (see Annex B of this guidance for further details), you may have a written
agreement with the student's education institution about the work placement. You are
strongly advised to retain this agreement as evidence that the student’'s work placement with
you does not exceed the time permitted for this activity.

Further information on Tier 4 students, including work placements, may be found _here.
When to contact the Home Office to verify right to work

When conducting checks on someone’s has the right to work in the UK, you are required to
contact us to establish or retain your statutory excuse in the following circumstances:

1. You are presented with a Certificate of Application which is less than six months old
and which indicates that work is permitted; or

2. You are presented with an Application Registration Card stating that the holder is
permitted to undertake the work in question. This will be restricted to employment in
a shortage occupation; or

3. You are satisfied that you have not been provided with any acceptable documents
because the person has an outstanding application with us which was made before
their previous permission expired or has an appeal or administrative review pending
against our decision and therefore cannot provide evidence of their right to work.

In the above circumstances, you will establish a statutory excuse only if you are issued with
a Positive Verification Notice from us confirming that the named person is allowed to carry
out the type of work in question.

Certificate of Application

You must check the original Certificate of Application which is not more than six months old
in the usual way. You must make a copy of this document and retain this copy, together
with the Positive Verification Notice. In so doing, you will have a statutory excuse for six
months from the date stated in the Positive Verification Notice. A Positive Verification Notice
will not provide a statutory excuse if you know that the employment is not permitted. In such
circumstances, you will also be committing a criminal offence.

19

Page 87 55


https://www.gov.uk/tier-4-general-visa

APPENDIX D

Application Registration Card and asylum seekers

Since July 2017, new upgraded Application Registration Cards (ARC) have been issued to
new asylum applicants through a gradual rollout. The ARC is the identification card used by
asylum applicants to demonstrate they have made an asylum claim. The new ARC closely
resembles the BRP. It includes new security features, a biometric facial image and an
expiry date. Whilst the earlier version of the ARC is no longer being issued, the cards
already in circulation will continue to be valid until 2019.

Asylum claimants are not normally allowed to work whilst their claim is being considered.
They are instead provided with accommodation and support to meet their essential living
needs if they would otherwise be destitute. We may grant permission to work to asylum
seekers whose claim has been outstanding for more than 12 months through no fault of their
own. Anyone who is permitted to work on the basis of this policy is restricted to working in a
job on the shortage occupation list published by the Home Office. Their ARC will state
“work permitted shortage OCC”. Any permission to work granted will come to an end if
their claim is refused and any appeal rights are exhausted because at that point they are
expected to leave the UK. Anyone who is granted permission to remain in the UK as a
refugee has unrestricted access to the labour market.

You may accept a new biometric style or an old style ARC as an evidence of a right to
work provided you verify the right to work and any work restrictions by obtaining a Positive
Verification Notice issued by our Employers Checking Service. This excuse will expire six
months from the date of the Positive Verification Notice when a further check must be
undertaken if the statutory excuse is to be retained.

If you receive a Negative Verification Notice from the Employer Checking Service, which
informs you that the individual does not have the right to work, if you employ this person you
will not have a statutory excuse and may be liable for a civil penalty or be committing a
criminal offence. Furtherinformation about employing asylum seekers may be found here.

Note: Do not make a request of the Employer Checking Service in the case employment that
commenced before 29 February 2008 and has been continuous ever since. You will receive
a Negative Verification Notice because this employment is out of scope of the civil penalty
scheme.

To find out if you need to request a verification check from the Employer Checking Service
and to make that check you should use the online tool ‘Employer Checking Service
Enquiries’.

Outstanding applications, appeals and ad ministrative reviews

If you request verification from the Employer Checking Service because the employee or

potential employee has an outstanding application with the Home Office or appeal or
administrative review against a Home Office decision, you should wait at least 14 days after

the application, appeal or administrative review has been delivered or posted to us or the
court, before requesting a verification check. This is because it takes this amount of time for
most applications, appeals or administrative reviews to be registered with the Home Office.

In order to make the verification request with the Employer Checking Service, you must
obtain confirmation from your employee or potential employee of when the application,

20
Page 88 56


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/583192/Permission-to-work-v7.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/employee-immigration-employment-status
https://www.gov.uk/employee-immigration-employment-status

APPENDIX D

appeal or administrative review was made to the Home Office. This information must be
included in the request form.

The Employer Checking Service aims to provide a response within 5 working days of
receiving a valid request. It is your responsibility to inform the person you intend to employ,
or continue employing, that you are carrying out this check on them, to complete the
verification request correctly and to make the request at least 14 days after the date of the
application, appeal or administrative review was delivered or posted.

Biometric Residence Permits

The Home Office began rolling out Biometric Residence Permits (BRPs) in November 2008.
Since July 2015, BRPs are the only evidence of lawful residence currently issued by the
Home Office to most non-EEA nationals and their dependants granted permission to remain
in the UK for more than six months. For migrants overseas, granted permission to enter the
UK for more than six months, they are issued with a vignette (sticker) in their passport which
will be valid for thirty days to enable them to travel to the UK. Following their arrival, they
will have 10 days or before their vignette expires (whichever is later) to collect their BRP
from the Post Office branch detailed in their decision letter. For most migrants granted
permission to be in the UK, the BRP will be the document that demonstrates they have
permission to work in the UK.

BRPs are credit-card sized immigration documents that contain a highly secure
embedded chip and incorporate sophisticated security safeguards to combat fraud and
tampering. BRPs therefore provide employers with a secure and simple means to
conduct a right to work check.

BRPs provide evidence of the holder's immigration status in the UK. They contain the
holder's unique biometric identifiers (fingerprints, digital photo) within the chip, are highly
resistant to forgery and counterfeiting, display a photo and biographical information on the
face of the document and details of entitlements, such as access to work and/or public
funds.

Migrants permitted to work in the UK are strongly encouraged to collect their BRP before
they start work. If they need to start work for you prior to collecting their BRP, they will be
able to evidence their right to work by producing the short validity vignette in their passport
which they used to travel to the UK. You will need to conduct a full right to work check on
the basis of this vignette, which must be valid at the time of the check. However, as this will
expire 30 days from issue, you will have to repeat the check using the BRP for the statutory
excuse to continue.

If you employ someone on the basis of the short validity vignette and they are unable to
present you with a BRP when the vignette time expires, you are not required to immediately
terminate the employment if you believe the employee continues to have the right to work.
However, once the 30 days has expired, you will not be able to establish a statutory excuse
if it transpires that the employee is working illegally. You will also not know when the
employee’s permission to work expires. In addition, without the BRP, the individual will have
no evidence of their right to be in the UK and their right to work here. They will also not be
able to travel in or out of the country. It is therefore important that you conduct the follow up
check using the BRP before the vignette expires.

21

Page 89 57


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/539328/In-Country_information_leaflet_-_July_2016.pdf

APPENDIX D

BRPs and National Insurance numbers

There is a gradual rollout of the combined BRP and National Insurance number (NINo) for
migrants who have the right to work in the UK. This commenced with Tier 2 (skilled
workers) main applicants who make an application in the UK, and is being extended to other
categories.

By themselves, NINos do not provide evidence that someone has the right to work in the
UK. However, adding the NINo to the BRP assists the employer in two ways. First, the
BRP provides an employer with a secure and simple means of checking a migrant's right to
work in the UK. Second, the provision of the NINo on the same document makes it easier

for employers to meet their requirements to administer PAYE and national insurance.

22

Page 90 58



APPENDIX D

6. When do you conduct checks?

You are required to carry out an initial right to work check on all people you intend to
employ before you employ them. Once you have completed this check, you will be
required to carry out follow-up right to work checks on this person if they have time-
limited permission to be in the UK and to do the work in question.

You need to recheck the status of those individuals who have limited permission to work in
the UK. This should occur when their previous permission comes to an end.

If a person provides you with acceptable documents from List A at Annex A there is no
restriction on their right to work in the UK, so you establish a continuous statutory
excuse for the duration of that person’s employment with you. You are not required to

carry out any further checks on this person.

If a person provides you with acceptable documents from List B there are restrictions on
their right to work in the UK, so you will establish a time-limited statutory excuse. You
are required to carry out follow-up checks on this person. The frequency of these follow-
up checks depends on whether the documents you are provided with are from Group 1 or
Group 2.

Group 1 documents provide a time-limited statutory excuse which expires when the
person’s permission to work expires. This means that you should carry out a follow-up
check when permission which demonstrates their permission to work expires.

Group 2 documents provide a time-limited statutory excuse which expires six months from
the date specified in your Positive Verification Notice. This means that you should carry
out a follow-up check when this notice expires.

Table 1 summarises when follow-up checks are required.

Table 1: Follow-up Checks

Document Type Excuse Type Frequency of Checks
List A Continuous Before employment starts only.
List B - Group 1 Time-limited Before employment starts and again

when permission (as set outin the
document checked) expires.

List B — Group 2 Time-limited Before employment starts and again
after six months (as setoutinthe
Positive Verification Notice).

If, on the date on which permission (as set out in the document checked) expires, you are
reasonably satisfied that your employee has either:

23

Page 91 59



APPENDIX D

o submitted an in time application to us to extend or vary their permission to be in the
UK; or
o made an appeal or an administrative review against a decision on that application;

your statutory excuse will continue from the expiry date of your employee’s permission for
a further period of up to 28 days to enable you to obtain a positive verification from the
Employers’ Checking Service. This ‘grace period’ of 28 days does not apply where the
right to work check is taking place before employment commences. In such
circumstances, you should delay employing the migrant until you have received a Positive
Verification Notice from our Employers’ Checking Service.

If during this period of 28 days, your employee provides evidence that their application,
appeal or administrative review has been determined with permission to remain granted
together with the relevant acceptable document from List A or List B Group 1, you may
establish your excuse by checking these documents in the normal way and a positive
verification by the Employers’ Checking Service will not be required. If, however, the
documents provided are from List B Group 2, positive verification by our Employers’
Checking Service will still be required for you to obtain a continuing excuse.

In respect of an appeal or administrative review, you should seek positive verification
through our Employers’ Checking Service. A letter from a solicitor indicating a successful
appeal or administrative review or a copy of a successful court judgment will not provide
you with a statutory excuse.

You can reasonably satisfy yourself of a pending application through, for example, a Home
Office acknowledgment letter or a Home Office or appeal tribunal reference number, and
proof of date of postage. [f your employee cannot provide this evidence, this does not
necessarily mean that they have not made an application, appeal or applied for an
administrative review.

In-time applications

A person’s application for further immigration permission to stay in the UK must be made
before their existing permission expires for it to be deemed ‘in-time’. If so, any existing
right to work will continue until that in-time application has been determined. In such
circumstances, a Positive Verification Notice from our Employers’ Checking Service would
demonstrate your statutory excuse for six months from the date of the Notice. If you
receive a Negative Verification Notice in response to your verification request, you will no
longer have a statutory excuse and you will be liable for a civil penalty if the person is not
permitted to work in the UK. You may also be convicted of the offence of employing an
illegal worker.

It is important that a person makes an application to the Home Office before their
permission to be here expires because this has an impact on their right to work.

24

Page 92 60



APPENDIX D

Appeals and Administrative Reviews

A Positive Verification Notice from our Employers’ Checking Service will also be required to
demonstrate a right to work where the person has an outstanding appeal or administrative
review. It will provide a statutory excuse for six months from the date of the Notice.

Administrative reviews have replaced many rights of appeal where the applicant believes
our decision to refuse their application incorrect. For decisions made in the UK, the review
application must be made within 14 calendar days from notification of the decision. Any
previous permission to work continues during the period that an administrative review can
be made and, if made, will continue until the administrative review has been determined
(decided or withdrawn). This will normally be within 28 days. You will need to obtain a
Positive Verification Notice from our Employers Checking Service, to confirm that work is
permitted. This Notice will provide you with a statutory excuse for six months from the date
of the Notice.

Where an application for an administrative review is brought after the period for making an
administrative review has expired, we may decide to accept the administrative review as
valid. If so, any permission to work will continue from the date that the administrative
review is valid. This will be confirmed by a Positive Verification Notice from the Employers’
Checking Service. The migrant will not be permitted to work between the date that their

previous permission to work time expired and the date we decide that the administrative
review is valid.

Further detail on administrative reviews may be found here.
Transfer of undertakings

Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) (TUPE) regulations provide that right
to work checks carried out by the transferor (the seller) are deemed to have been carried
out by the transferee (the buyer). As such, the buyer will obtain the benefit of any statutory
excuse acquired by the seller. However, if the seller did not conduct the checks correctly,
the buyer would be liable for a penalty if an employee is later found to be working illegally.
Also, a check by the buyer would be necessary to determine when any follow-up check
should be carried out in respect of employees with limited permission to work in the UK.
For these reasons, employers who acquire staff through TUPE regulations should
undertake a right to work check on all new TUPE members of staff.

We recognise that there may be practical problems in undertaking these checks before the
employment commences for workers acquired as a result of a TUPE transfer and for this
reason a period of grace has been provided during which you should undertake the check.
This period runs for 60 days from the date of the transfer of the business to correctly carry
out their first statutory document checks in respect of these new TUPE employees. There
is no such grace period for any subsequent follow-up checks.

Changes in the Employer’s legal constitution

Where the employer is a corporate body and there has only been a change in the
employer's legal constitution e.g. a change from a private limited company to a public
limited company or change from a partnership to a limited company or a limited liability

25
Page 93 61


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/administrative-review

APPENDIX D

partnership or a TUPE transfer within the same group of companies, the right to work
check does not need to be repeated because of this change. This is only the case when
the employer is effectively the same entity and is only changing its legal status. Where
there is any doubt, we recommend that the employer checks the person’s right to work,
rather than risking liability for a civil penalty should an employee be found to be working
illegally.

26

Page 94 62



APPENDIX D

/. Do you have any questions?

In the first instance, please refer to the Home Office guidance:

. The online interactive tool ‘Check if someone can work in the UK’;

The online interactive tool ‘Employer Checking Service Enquiries’;

Carry out a right to work check: a 3 step guide;

An employer’'s ‘Right to Work Checklist’;

Acceptable right to work documents: an employer’s guide;

Frequently asked questions;

Code of practice on preventing illegal working: Civil penalty scheme for employers;
Code of practice for employers: Avoiding unlawful discrimination while preventing
illegal working; and

o An employer’'s guide to the administration of the civil penalty scheme.

If you cannot find the answer to your question, please contact our Sponsorship, Employer
and Education Helpline on 0300 123 4699.

27

Page 95 63


https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/employers-illegal-working-penalties
https://www.gov.uk/legal-right-work-uk
https://www.gov.uk/employee-immigration-employment-status
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/533771/Right_to_Work_Factsheet_A5_June2016.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/right-to-work-checklist
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/acceptable-right-to-work-documents-an-employers-guide
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/preventing-illegal-working-frequently-asked-questions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/preventing-illegal-working-code-of-practice-for-employers
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/right-to-work-checks-code-of-practice-on-avoiding-discrimination
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/right-to-work-checks-code-of-practice-on-avoiding-discrimination
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/illegal-working-fines-employers-guide

APPENDIX D

8. Annex A

Lists of acceptable documents for right to work checks

List A

Acceptable documents to establish a continuous statutory excuse

1.

A passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the holder,
is a British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK.

/A passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A Registration Certificate or Document Certifying Permanent Residence issued by the Home
Office to a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national
of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the
Home Office to the holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in
the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is
allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on
their stay in the UK.

A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an
endorsement indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has
no time limit on their stay in the UK, together with an official document giving the person’s
permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a
previous employer.

A full birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK which includes the name(s) of at least one|
of the holder's parents or adoptive parents, together with an official document giving the
person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government
agency or a previous employer.

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland,
together with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

10

A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, together with an official
document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued
by a Government agency or a previous employer.

28

Page 96 64



APPENDIX D

List B

Group 1 - Documentswhere atime-limited statutory excuse lasts until the expiry date of leave

1.

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently
allowed to do the type of work in question.

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home
Office to the holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is
allowed to do the work in question.

A current Residence Card (including an Accession Residence Card or a Derivative Residence
Card) issued by the Home Office to a non-European Economic Area national who is a family,
member of a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland or who has a
derivative right of residence.

A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to
the holder with a valid endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is
allowed to do the type of work in question, together with an official document giving the
person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency
or a previous employer.

Group 2 — Documentswhere atime-limited statutory excuse lasts for 6 months

1.

A Certificate of Application issued by the Home Office under regulation 17(3) or 18A (2) of the
Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2006, to a family member of a national of a
European Economic Area country or Switzerland stating that the holder is permitted to take
employment which is less than 6 months old together with a Positive Verification Notice
from the Home Office Employer Checking Service.

2. An Application Registration Card issued by the Home Office stating that the holder is permitted to
take the employment in question, together with a Positive Verification Notice from the Home
Office Employer Checking Service.

3. A Positive Verification Notice issued by the Home Office Employer Checking Service to the

employer or prospective employer, which indicates that the named person may stay in the UK
and is permitted to do the work in question.

29

Page 97 65



APPENDIX D

Annex B

Employment of specific categories of workers
Students

Not all international students (those from outside the European Economic Area (EEA) or
Switzerland) are entitled to work while they are in the UK, but some are allowed to take
limited employment providing the conditions of their permission to study permit this.

A student granted permission to be in the UK as a Tier 4 student who is permitted to work
will have a clear endorsement in their passport or Biometric Residence Permit, which
states they are permitted to work and the number of hours of work allowed during term time
e.g. 10 hours or 20 hours in a week, considered to be Monday to Sunday. [ this
information is not set out in these documents, the student does not have the right to work.
Students who have the right to work are permitted to work full-time during vacations.

Short-term students are not permitted to work, either in the term time or the vacation, or do
a work placement.

Work placements

Work placements are intended to enable the student to gain specific experience of working
in the field for which they are studying. Work placements are distinct from any employment
that a student may (if permitted) take while they are following a course of study.

Tier 4 students, including child students aged 16 or over, are allowed to undertake work
placements where they are integral and related to the course and are assessed as part of
the course. Where their Tier 4 sponsor is a Probationary Sponsor, such courses must be
atleast RQF level 6 or SCQF level 9. Activity as part of a course-related work placement is
restricted to no more than one third of the total length of the course undertaken in the UK
unless:

o the student is following a course at degree level or above and is sponsored by a
Higher Education Institution (HEI) or by an overseas HEI to undertake a short-term
Study Abroad Programme in the UK, in which case the work placement is restricted
to no more than 50 per cent of the total length of the course; or

o the student is a child student aged 16 or over, in which case the work placement can
form no more than 50 per cent of the total length of the course; or

o there is a statutory requirement for the course to include a specific period of work
placement which exceeds this limit.

Tier 4 education sponsors should provide a letter addressed to you as the work placement
provider confirming that the work placement forms an integral part of the course and does
not, by itself or in combination with other periods of work placement, breach the above
restrictions. The letter should also include the terms and conditions of the work placement,
including the work that the student will be expected to do, and how and when they will be

30

Page 98 66



APPENDIX D

assessed. You are strongly advised to obtain and retain such a letter as evidence of the
work placement and evidence that the work placement restrictions have not been breached
as you may be liable for a civil penalty if your student employee does not comply with their
immigration conditions.

While your student employee is undertaking a work placement as required by their course,
this period of placement is not included within the period of term time employment
permitted by their immigration conditions.

Further information on Tier 4 students, including work placements, may be found here.

Impact of a change in circumstances on a Tier 4 points based
system student’s right to work

1. The student has changed their sponsor — If we grant the student permission to
study with a different education sponsor, it will be clear whether work is permitted and for
how long. If we do not grant permission see the advice below: ‘student is in the process of
changing their sponsor’.

2. The student is in the process of changing their sponsor — Under Tier 4
guidance a student may start a new course when:

o they have applied to us for permission to study with a Tier 4 sponsor which has Tier
4 Sponsor status; and

o their permission to study in the UK with the former sponsor is still valid; and

° their prospective Tier 4 sponsor has assigned a confirmation of acceptance for

studies to them for the new course.

If all these criteria are met, the student is permitted to start the course with the new
sponsor and can undertake employment in line with the current conditions which are
attached to their permission to study once they have started the new course. If any of the
criteria are not met, the student does not have permission to work and will be in breach of
their immigration conditions if they do so.

3. The student changes to a new course with the same sponsor — If the new
course is below the level of academic study which permits restricted work, the student will
be working in breach of their immigration conditions if they do work. You should not
employ them. If their new course results in a reduction of the number of hours the student
is permitted to work, and they continue to work more than this number, they will be in
breach of their immigration conditions.

4. The migrant has stopped studying — If the migrant has stopped studying before
they complete their course (whether they have withdrawn themselves or been withdrawn by
their education sponsor) they are no longer following the course of study and will therefore
be in breach of their immigration conditions if they work, even if they still have permission
to be in the UK. You should not employ them. The only exception to this will be if the
criteria in the ‘student is in the process of changing their sponsor’ scenario (above) are met.

5. The student has completed their course early — Where a student is given
permission to come to the UK to study, they are given a short period of time to stay in the
31

Page 99 67


https://www.gov.uk/tier-4-general-visa

APPENDIX D

UK after their course ends. The student may work full time during this additional period.
If the student completes their course early, we will normally vary the student's permission
so that this short period of time to stay in the UK runs from the new course end date. If their
permission to be in the UK has not been varied in this way but the person is found working
beyond the additional period of time to stay that would apply to their new course end date,
they will be in breach of their immigration conditions. In such circumstances, you should
not employ them.

6. The student’s education sponsor has had their licence revoked or ceased
trading — The right to work is dependent on the student (i) following a course of study at
the appropriate academic level and (ii) with a sponsor of the specified academic status. If
the sponsor no longer has a sponsor licence because it has been revoked, the migrant can
no longer meet this second requirement. If the sponsor has ceased trading, the migrant is
unable to meet either requirement. In both cases, the migrant would be in breach of their
conditions if they work and you should not employ them.

7. The student continues to study but not with the named sponsor - As indicated
above, the right to work is dependent on the student being sponsored. Accordingly, the
migrant would be in breach of their conditions if they work whilst they are not being
educated by their sponsor (unless other conditions apply) and you should not employ them.

32
Page 100 68



APPENDIX D

Nationals from the European Economic Area (EEA) and their
Family Members

The rights of EEA nationals and their family members to live and work in other EEA states
are set out in European Union legislation, primarily Directive 2004/38/EC — known as ‘the
Free Movement Directive’, by which all Member States are bound.

The EEA consists of the countries within the European Union together with Iceland,
Liechtenstein and Norway. Switzerland is not part of the EEA. However, the same rights
to live and work in other Member States have been extended to Swiss nationals and their
family members, and you should carry out the same checks for them as set out in this
guidance for EEA nationals and their family members. Throughout this section, any
reference to an EEA national should be interpreted as also including Swiss nationals.

The relevant UK legislation is the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations
2016 (‘the EEA Regulations’) which sets out the rights of EEA and Swiss nationals and
their family members.

EEA nationals

EEA nationals have the right to work in the UK. However, you should not employ any
individual simply on the basis that they claim to be an EEA national. You should also be
aware that not all EEA nationals are permitted to work in the UK without restrictions (please
see the section on Croatian nationals below).

You should require any person who claims to be an EEA national to produce an official
document showing their nationality. This will usually be either a national passport or
national identity card which indicates that the holder is a national of an EEA state.

Registration Certificates: some EEA nationals may also have been issued with a
registration certificate. This is a document issued by us to confirm that they are living here
in compliance with the EEA Regulations, either by fulfilling the requirements for residence
(also known as ‘exercising Treaty rights’) or by residing here as the family member of
another EEA national who is exercising Treaty rights, or who has permanent residence.

Document Certifying Permanent Residence: some EEA nationals may be able to
produce a document certifying that they have a right of permanent residence in the UK.
Under EU law, an EEA national can acquire permanent residence after five years’ lawful
and continuous residence inthe UK.

All of these documents (passport establishing EEA nationality, national identity card

establishing EEA nationality, registration certificate and document certifying permanent
residence) are included in List A of acceptable documents, and production of any one of

them will provide you with a continuous statutory excuse if checked and copied correctly
before the person starts working for you.

33
Page 101 69


mailto:https://www.gov.uk/eu-eea
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/1003/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/1003/made

APPENDIX D

EEA nationals who may work without restriction:

o Austria o Latvia

. Belgium o Liechtenstein
o Bulgaria o Lithuania

o Cyprus o Luxembourg
o Czech Republic o Malta

. Denmark o Netherlands
o Estonia o Norway

o Finland o Poland

o France o Portugal

. Germany o Romania

. Greece o Slovakia

o Hungary . Slovenia

o Iceland o Spain

o Ireland o Sweden

. ltaly

Nationals of Switzerland may also work without restriction.

Croatian nationals

Separate restrictions on Croatian nationals’ access to the labour market are set out in the
Accession of Croatia (Immigration and Worker Authorisation) Regulations 2013. Please
refer to the ‘Code of practice for employers civil penalties: illegal employment of a Croatian
national'.

Since 1 July 2013, as EU nationals, Croatians have been able to move and reside freely in
any EEA Member State. However, the UK has applied transitional restrictions on their
access to the labour market. These are set out in the Accession of Croatia (Immigration
and Worker Authorisation) Regulations 2013. Under these Regulations, a Croatian national
who wishes to work in the UK and who is subject to the worker authorisation requirement
will need to obtain an accession worker authorisation document (permission to work) before
starting any employment.

This means that since 1 July 2013, a Croatian national will only be able to work in the UK if
they hold a valid accession worker authorisation document (such as a purple registration
certificate) or if they are exempt from work authorisation. Under the 2013 Regulations, you
are required to carry out document checks to confirm if a Croatian national is either exempt
from work authorisation or holds a valid worker authorisation document for the work in
question. You should check, validate and keep dated copies of original acceptable
documents before they start working for you. The list of exempt categories is contained in
our guidance.

Croatian students who have been issued with a yellow registration certificate are only
permitted to work for 20 hours a week during term time and full time during vacation
periods. If you do not carry out these checks and you are found to be employing a Croatian
national who does not have a right to work, you may be required to pay a civil penalty. If

34

Page 102 70


https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/employers-iilegal-working-penalties
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/employers-iilegal-working-penalties
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2013/9780111539156

APPENDIX D

you knowingly employ a Croatian national illegally, you will have committed a criminal
offence.

You can find out more information on your duty under the Accession of Croatia
Regulations 2013 in our separate Code of practice for employer civil penalties: illegal
employment of a Croatian national.

Non-EEA Family Members of EEA nationals

Non-EEA nationals who are the family members of an EEA (or Swiss) national who is
exercising Treaty rights or has permanent residence, are also entitled to live and work in the
UK.

You should not employ any individual simply on the basis that they claim to be the family
member of an EEA national. You should also be aware that not all family members of EEA
nationals are permitted to work in the UK without restrictions.

Residence Cards: Residence cards are issued by us to the non-EEA family members of
EEA nationals who are exercising Treaty rights or have permanent residence in the UK. A

valid residence card can be used to demonstrate that the holder has a right to work in the
UK. Residence cards are included in List B of acceptable documents, and will provide you

with a time-limited statutory excuse if they are current, and have been checked and copied
correctly.

Permanent Residence Cards: Some non-EEA family members of EEA nationals may also
be able to produce a permanent residence card, issued by us which indicates that they
have lived in the UK for five years in compliance with the EEA Regulations. A permanent
residence card, issued to a family member of an EEA national, is included in List A of
acceptable documents, and will provide you with a continuous statutory excuse if checked
and copied correctly.

Accession Residence Cards: Accession residence cards are issued by us to the non-
EEA family members of Croatian nationals who are subject to worker authorisation
requirements. Accession residence cards are included in List B of acceptable documents,
and will provide you with a time-limited statutory excuse if checked and copied correctly
before the person starts working for you. Accession Residence Cards will not be issued in
a biometric format.

When the current residence card, permanent residence card, accession residence card or
derivative residence card is inserted into the holder's national passport, there is no
requirement for that passport to be current. However, you should ensure that the passport
belongs to that person and take particular care checking the passport photograph if the
passport is a number of years old. Since 6 April 2015, residence cards and permanent
residence cards have been issued in biometric format. For more information please see
Residence Cards (biometric format).

Non-EEA Nationals with a Derivative Right of Residence

Some non-EEA nationals have what is called a ‘derivative right of residence’ in the UK
based on their relationship with an EEA (or Swiss) national or a British citizen. This means

35
Page 103 4


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/257338/civil-penalties-croatian.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/257338/civil-penalties-croatian.pdf

APPENDIX D

that these rights have been established by the Court of Justice of the European Union in
cases where the non-EEA national's presence is necessary in order to enable the EEA
national or British citizen to live here. For example, the non-EEA parent of an EEA child may
meet the requirements. These rights only arise in a limited range of circumstances and only
where the specific conditions are met. Non-EEA nationals with a derivative right of
residence are entitled to reside and work in the UK. Derivative residence cards are in List

B of acceptable documents, and will provide you with a time-limited statutory excuse if
checked and copied correctly.

Residence Cards (biometric format)

Since 6 April 2015, we have issued Residence Cards (including Permanent Residence
Cards and Derivative Residence Cards) for non EEA family members in a biometric format.
From this date we stopped issuing the vignette in the passport or standalone document,
though these will continue to be acceptable documents for the purpose of right to work
checks.

The new Residence Cards (biometric format) closely resemble Biometric Residence
Permits. They are of a standard credit card size and contain the holder's digital image,
name and signature, date and place of birth, nationality, gender, expiry date of card, place
of issue, type of residence card (category of residence) and a unique number. They will
also contain a biometric chip. The cards are more secure against forgery and abuse and
therefore provide a helpful means to employers to conduct a right to work check.

A sample Residence Card (biometric format) may be found in ‘Acceptable right to work
documents: an employer's guide’. Current Residence Cards which are endorsed in
passports or are standalone documents will continue to be valid until they expire.
Accession Residence Cards will not be issued in a biometric format.

Certificate of Application

Since 6 April 2015, an application by a non EEA Family Member of an EEA National for a
Residence Card or Derivative Residence Card has only been considered valid at the point
at which the applicant successfully enrolls their biometric information. Applicants will
continue to receive an initial acknowledgement letter which will not demonstrate a right to
work. Instead, they will have 15 working days in which to enrol their biometrics. If they fail
to do so, they will be sent a reminder giving them a further 10 working days in which to
enroll. If they fail to enroll their biometrics after the 10 days have passed, their application
will be rejected as invalid.

Where the application is made by a direct family member who has successfully enrolled
their biometric information and has submitted

their valid passport; and

the valid EEA passport or national identity card for the EEA national; and

evidence of relationship to their EEA national; and

evidence that the EEA national is exercising Treaty rights or has acquired permanent
residence

36
Page 104 72


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/acceptable-right-to-work-documents-an-employers-guide
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/acceptable-right-to-work-documents-an-employers-guide
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/421335/Direct_Family_Members_v2_0.pdf

APPENDIX D

the applicant will be issued with a Certificate of Application which states that the individual
has a right to work in the UK whilst their application for a Residence Card or Derivative
Residence Card is being considered. This Certificate of Application will only give you a
statutory excuse if it is less than six months old and is accompanied by a Positive
Verification Notice issued by our Employer Checking Service stating that the holder has
permission to do the work in question. The excuse will last for six months from the date of
the Positive Verification Notice.

Applicants who are not direct family members, or do not provide the required documents,
will not receive a Certificate of Application that states that work is permitted.

If you are presented with a Certificate of Application that does not state that work is
permitted, this will not demonstrate a right to work and our Employer Checking Service will
provide a Negative Verification Notice.

If the employee or potential employee’s Certificate of Application is more than six months
old, but the individual's application for a Residence Card or Derivative Residence Card has
not been finally determined, they can apply to the Home Office for a replacement Certificate
of Application which will again be valid for six months. If work has been permitted, this work
entittement will be verified by the Employer Checking Service through a Positive Verification
Notice.

Additional information

Non-EEA nationals may claim to have a right to work in the UK as a family member of an
EEA national, or by virtue of a derivative right, but do not hold documentationissued by us.

There is no mandatory requirement for non-EEA nationals who are resident in the UK as a
family member of an EEA national, or who have a derivative right of residence in the UK, to
register with us or to obtain documentation from us.

Consequently, it is open to any non-EEA national who has an enforceable European Union
law right to work in the UK - as a direct family member’ of an EEA national or by virtue of a
derivative right of residence - to demonstrate the existence of that right through means
other than those documents in Lists A and B which are explained in the preceding sections.

In such cases, you may choose to accept such alternative evidence. You should ask to see
the following, however, in so doing you will not establish a statutory excuse against a

penalty should the individual be found to be working illegally:

o evidence of the applicant's own identity — such as a passport; and

o evidence of their relationship with the EEA family member — e.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and

o evidence that the EEA national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is

one of the following if they have beenin the UK for more than 3 months:

" In this context ‘family member means a spouse, civil partner, child under 21 and
dependent relative in the ascending line such as a parent or grandparent. Other
relatives such as unmarried partners can only fall into the ‘family member’ category if
they have beenissued a Residence Card by the Home Office.

37

Page 105 73



APPENDIX D

(i) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer; or
(i) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts; or

(iif)  studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient
funds; or

(iv)  self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.

For family members of EEA nationals who are studying or financially independent, you must
also see evidence that the EEA national and any family members hold comprehensive
sickness insurance in the UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC
card ora S1, S2 or S3 form.

You must only accept original documents as evidence.

In such cases, you may choose to accept such alternative evidence. However, in the event
that a non-EEA national is found not to qualify to work in the UK, you would be liable to
payment of a civil penalty as you will not have established a statutory excuse unless you
have also seen, copied and retaining a copy of the appropriate documents set out in Annex
A of this guidance. Further guidance on EEA and non-EEA family members of EEA
nationals can be found in the European casework instruction page on GOV .UK.

Entrepreneur

A person granted immigration permission under Tier 1 of the Points Based Scheme as an
entrepreneur is not permitted to be employed. They are only allowed to work for their

own business. The endorsement in the passport or Biometric Residence Card will clearly
state what they are permitted to do. The Biometric Residence Permit currently states:-

Front:

T1 HS ENTREPRENEUR
LEAVE TO REMAIN
RESTRICTED WORK
BUS INVEST

NO SPORTSPERSON

Reverse:

NO PUBLIC FUNDS

Voluntary Work

Individuals who have been granted immigration permission to be in the UK are permitted to
volunteer. This includes visitors who can volunteer for a registered charity for a maximum
of 30 days during their visit, but volunteering cannot be the main purpose of their visit, and
students. However, subject to the exception set out below, individuals who have limited
permission to work in the UK may not carry out any voluntary work.

38
Page 106 74


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/european-casework-instructions

APPENDIX D

The legal distinction between volunteering and voluntary work can be quite complex.
However, there are some key questions to consider when assessing whether an activity is
voluntary work:

Itis likely to be voluntary work if:

o there is an obligation on the individual to perform the work and in return an obligation
on the organisation to provide it. The obligation does not have to be in writing.

o the individual is rewarded for that work, either through money or be nefits in kind.
An obligation to work or receipt of remuneration is likely to mean that the individual is
working under a mutuality of obligation. Where there is mutuality of obligation, it is
voluntary work.

However as the legal distinction is not always clear, we recommend that those involved
seek independent legal advice for their specific activity.

An individual who is not permitted to work might commit a criminal offe nce by engaging in
voluntary work when they are subject to contractual obligations. In such circumstances,
their employer might also be liable for a civil penalty for employing an illegal worker.

Tier 4 (General) students and Tier 4 (Child) students aged 16 and over can do voluntary
work if they are permitted to work, but this work and any other (for example paid) work must
not exceed the total number of hours they are permitted to work during term time. For
example, if a student is permitted to work 20 hours a week during term-time and has paid
work of 15 hours a week during term time, they cannot do more than 5 hours voluntary
work. [f they are not permitted to work they cannot do voluntary work.

Employment of other categories

For information about other immigration categories including the employment of refugees
and asylum seekers, please refer to the Frequently Asked Questions document.

39
Page 107 75


https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/employers-illegal-working-penalties

APPENDIX D

Right to Work Checklist

Home Office

Name of person:
Date of check:
Type of check: Initial check before employment [ |  Follow-up check on an employee [ ]

Step 1 Obtain
e You must obtain original documents from either List A or List B of acceptable documents.

1. [] A passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the holder, is a British citizen or

a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK.

2. [] A passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the

holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

3. [ ] A Registration Certificate or Document Certifying Permanent Residence issued by the Home Office, to a national

of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland. I _‘

4. [_] A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office, to the family member of a national of a European

Economic Area country or Switzerland.

5. [ A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the

holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the
UK.

| 8. [J A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay

| indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

7. [ A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement indicating

that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in the UK, together

with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a

Government agency or a previous employer. i

8. [_] A full birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK which includes the name(s) of at least one of the holder’s

parents or adoptive parents, together with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance

number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. :

9. [ ] A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland, together with an official

document giving the person's permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency

or a previous employer.

10. [] A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, together with an official document giving the

person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous

employer.

List B Group 1
1. [] A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to do
the type of work in question. o
2. [ ] A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to do the work in question.
3. [] A current Residence Card (including an Accession Residence Card or a Derivative Residence Card) issued by
| the Home Office to a non-European Economic Area national who is a family member of a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland or who has a derivative right of residence.
4. [ ] A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder with a
valid endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to do the type of work in
question, together with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

List B Group 2
1. [ A Certificate of Application issued by the Home Office under regulation 17(3) or 18A (2) of the Immigration
(European Economic Area) Regulations 2006, to a family member of a national of a European Economic Area country
or Switzerland stating that the holder is permitted to take employment which is less than 6 months old together with
a Positive Verification Notice from the Home Office Employer Checking Service.
2. [] An Application Registration Card issued by the Home Office stating that the holder is permitted to take the
employment in question, together with a Positive Verification Notice from the Home Office Employer Checking
Service.
3. [] A Positive Verification Notice issued by the Home Office Employer Checking Service to the employer or
prospective employer, which indicates that the named person may stay in the UK and is permitted to do the work in
question.

Page 108 76



APPENDIX D

“‘ifr\s D 'A '5 Wls‘io A=l e

e You must check that the documents‘ are genume that the person presentlng them is the
prospective employee or employee, the rightful holder and allowed to do the type of work you

are offering.
1. Are photographs consistent across documents and with the 'Yes [ | No[ ] NA []
_person’s appearance? i L I e T el WL O MY,
2. Are dates of birth consistent across documents and with the Yes [ ] No[] N/A []

_person’s appearance? S e o e e ]
3. Are expiry dates for time-limited permission to be in the UKinthe Yes [] No[] NA[]
future i.e. they have not passed (if applicable)? ) |
4. Have you checked work restrictions to determine if the person is Yes [ ] No[] NA []
able to work for you and do the type of work you are offering? (for
students who have limited permission to work during term-times,
you must also obtain, copy and retain details of their academic term
and vacation times covering the duration of their period of study in the

5. Are you satisfied the document is genuine, has not been tampered | Yes [ | No[] N/A []'
with and belongs to the holder?
6. Have you checked the reasons for any different names across Yes [ | No[] NA []
documents (e.g. marriage certificate, divorce decree, deed poll)?
(Supporting documents should also be photocopied and a copy

retained.)

You must make a clear copy of each document in a format which cannot later be altered, and
retain the copy securely: electronically or in hardcopy. You must copy and retain:
1. [] Passports: any page with the document expiry date, nationality, date of birth, signature,
leave expiry date, biometric details and photograph, and any page containing information indicating
the holder has an entitlement to enter or remain in the UK and undertake the work in question.
2. [_] All other documents: the document in full, both sides of a Biometric Residence Permit.

| You must also record and retain the date on which the check was made.

-

5 Know the type of excuse you have e

If you have correctly carried out the above 3 steps you will have an excuse against liability for a
civil penalty if the above named person is found working for you illegally. However, you need to be
aware of the type of excuse you have as this determines how long it lasts for, and if, and when you
are required to do a follow-up check.

The documents that you have checked and copied are from:

1. List A [_] You have a continuous statutory excuse for the full duration of the person’s
employment with you. You are not required to carry out any repeat right to work checks on this
person.

2. List B: Group 1 [] You have a time-limited statutory excuse which expires when the
person’s permission to be in the UK expires. You should carry out a follow-up check when the
document evidencing their permission to work expires.

3. List B: Group 2 [_] You have a time-limited statutory excuse which expires 6 months from
the date specified in your Positive Verification Notice. This means that you should carry out a
follow-up check when this notice expires.

Date follow-up check required: |

Page 109 77



APPENDIX D

[Insert name and address of relevant licensing authority and its reference number (optional)]

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club
premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
VILLAGE TANDOORI
11 HIGH STREET

Post town SOUTHMINSTER, MALDON Post code (if known) CM0 7AA

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
ABDUR RASHID & ABDUL HAI

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)
05/00766/LAPRE 208

Part 2 - Applicant details

Iam
Please tick v yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible

authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A) []
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) X
3) a member of the club to which this application relates L]

(please complete (A) below)

Page 110 78



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick v" yes

Mr [] Mrs [ Miss [] Ms L] Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

APPENDIX D

Please tick v" yes
I am 18 years old or over ]

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Page 111

79



APPENDIX D

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Nigel DERMOTT 42076439
ESSEX POLICE

COUNTY LICENSING HUB
BRAINTREE POLICE STATION
BYTHS MEADOW
BRAINTREE

CM7 3DJ

Telephone number (if any)
01245 452035

E-mail address (optional)
Licensing.applications@essex.pnn.police.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v’
1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

I X

Page 112 80



APPENDIX D

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

The grounds for review are that the crime and disorder objective of the Licensing Act 2003 has
been undermined in that Immigration Compliance and Enforcement officers of the Home Office
discovered disqualified persons working illegally on the premises. The statutory crime prevention
objective in the 2003 Act includes the prevention of immigration crime and the prevention of the
illegal working in licensed premises. In particular, employing a person who is disqualified from
work by reason of their immigration status is a criminal activity which in accordance with the
guidance issued by the Home Office under Sec. 182 to the Licensing Act 2003, Para. 11.26 —
11.28 should be treated particularly seriously.

Page 113 81



APPENDIX D

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)

At 1745hrs on Thursday 2™ May 2019 Officers from HM Immigration Compliance &
Enforcement team entered premises at Village Tandoori, 11 High Street, Southminster, Maldon,
CMO 7AA under the authority of Sec 179 of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under Sec 36 and
schedule 4 of the Immigration Act 2016 and a warrant issued by a Magistrate.

The premises were open at the time and the officers were met without any resistance. Having
assembled persons found working on the premises enquiries revealed that there was one male
working on these licensed premises who had overstayed their visa since 2006 and had no right to
work in the UK. Subsequent enquiries with the Home Office confirm that this is the case and that
the subject had no right to work or recourse to public funds.

The DPS — who is also a joint Premises Licence Holder - was issued with a referral notice for
illegal working civil penalty in respect of this worker.

In view of the circumstances, Essex Police would be seeking a revocation of the Premises licence.
Essex Police will produce further documentary evidence or other information in support of this

application as it may do under Regulation 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations
2005.

Page 114

82



APPENDIX D

Please tick v" yes
Have you made an application for review relating to the ]
premises before
If yes please state the date of that application Day Month  Year

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them

Page 115 83



APPENDIX D

Please tick v’
yes

e [ have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities X
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate

e [understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my X
application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature Nigel Dermott
................................................................................. Nigel DERMOTT
Date 28/05/2019  (amended after consultation with Licensing Authority)
Capacity

Licensing Officer with the delegated power of the Chief Officer of Police for Essex (the Chief
Constable of Essex Police) to submit review applications........................

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Nigel DERMOTT 42076439

Police Licensing Officer Chelmsford & Maldon

ESSEX POLICE COUNTY LICENSING HUB

BRAINTREE POLICE STATION

BLYTHS MEADOW
Post town Post Code
BRAINTREE CM7 3DJ

Telephone number (if any) 01245 452035

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional) Licensing.applications@essex.pnn.police.uk

Notes for Guidance

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

4. The application form must be signed.

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

Page 116 84



APPENDIX D

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Page 117 85



APPENDIX D

NOTPROTECTIVELY MARKED

Regulation 33, 34
Premises Licence

Maldon District Council

Premises Licence Number 05/00766/LAPRE 208

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including
Post Town, Post Code

Village Tandoori

11 High Street

Southminster

Essex

CMO0 7AA

Telephone number _

Where the licence is time limited the dates
N/A

Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Sunday 12:00 - 23:30
Monday - Saturday 11:00 - 00:00

The opening hours of the premises

1_MON 11:00 - 00:00
2_TUE 11:00 - 00:00
3_WED 11:00 - 00:00
4_THU 11:00 - 00:00
5_FRI 11:00 - 00:00
6_SAT 11:00 - 00:00
7_SUN 12:00 - 23:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies
Alcohol is supplied for consumption on the Premises

NOTPROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 118 86




APPENDIX D

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence

Mr. Abdul Hai

318 Church Street

London
N9 9HJ Telephone_

Mr Abdur Rashid
24 Palgrave House
Fleet Road

London

NW3 2Q] Telephone_

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
N/A

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Mr Abdur Rashid

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Personal Licence Number: Licensing Authority: London - Borough - Camden
Date. .. 23" August 2005 This Premises Licence issued
in accordance with Section 18
of the Licensing fct 2003

Maldon District Council Licensing Authority

Issued 8" June 2012 following a change of Licence holder’s address

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 119 87




APPENDIX D

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions
1 That no supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence:-

a) At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of
the Premises Licence

b) At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a
Personal Licence or his Personal Licence is suspended.

2 That every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a Personal Licence.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 120 88



APPENDIX D

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
1 Alcohol shall not be sold on the premises otherwise than to persons taking table meals there
and for the consumption by such persons as ancillary to the meal.

2 Suitable beverages other than alcohol (including drinking water) should be equally available for
consumption with or otherwise as an ancillary to meals served in the licensed premises.

3 Permitted hours on this licence means:
On weekdays, other than Christmas day, Good Friday or New year's Eve from 11am to 00:00
On Sundays, other than Christmas day, or New Year’s Eve, and on Good Friday: Noon to 23:30
On Christmas Day: 12 Noon to 23:30;
On New Year's Eve, except on a Sunday, 11:00 to 00:00
On New Year's Eve on a Sunday, 12:00 to 23:30

On New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours
on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following day, midnight on 31st December)

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 121 89



APPENDIX D

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 122 9



APPENDIX D

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Annex 4 — Plans

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 123 ot



APPENDIX D

NOTPROTECTIVELY MARKED

Regulation 33, 34
Premises Licence Summary
Maldon District Council

Premises Licence Number 05/00766/LAPRE 208

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including
Post Town, Post Code

Village Tandoori

11 High Street

Southminster

Essex

CMO0 7AA

Telephone number _

Where the licence is time limited the dates
N/A

Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Sunday 12:00 - 23:30
Monday - Saturday 11:00 - 00:00

The opening hours of the premises

1_MON 11:00 - 00:00
2_TUE 11:00 - 00:00
3_WED 11:00 - 00:00
4_THU 11:00 - 00:00
5_FRI 11:00 - 00:00
6_SAT 11:00 - 00:00
7_SUN 12:00 - 23:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies
Alcohol is supplied for consumption on the Premise

NOTPROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 124 92




APPENDIX D

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence
Mr. Abdul Hai

318 Church Street

London

N9 9H]

Mr Abdur Rashid
24 Palgrave House
Fleet Road

London

NW3 2QJ

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
N/A

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of
alcohol
Mr. Abdur Rashid

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited

N/A
Date. .. 23 August 2005 This Premises Licence issued
in accordance with Section 18
of the Licensing Act 2003

Maldon District Council Licensing Authority

Issued 8" June 2012 following a change of Licence holder’s address

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 125 93



This page is intentionally left blank



AppendiX E

@ KC Solicitors

Committed to the Community

Our Ref: 782.19/CL/KC

Your Ref: N/K 55-57 Brady Street
London E1 SDW
Tel : 020 7375 376
16/05/2019 Fax : 020 7577 1113
info@kesolicitors.co.uk
FAO: Nigel Dermott 42076439 VAT Reg No: 2800743 25

www.kesolicitors.co.uk
Police Licensing Officer Chelmsford & Maldon

Essex Police County Licensing Hub
Braintree Police Station

Blyths Meadow

Braintree

CM7 3DJ

Dear Sirs

Re: Application to review Premises Licence 07/00766/LAPRE208;
PREMISES: Village Tandoori, 11 High Street, Southminster, Maldon CM0
7AA.
We refer to your letter dated 13t May 2019 regarding the review of the above
mentioned Premises Licence where Mr Abdur Rashid is one of the Licence holders
and write to inform you that we have been instructed by him to represent his
matters. Please find enclose a sign copy of letter of authority which enables us to
deal this matter effectively. We will be obliged if you kindly direct all future

correspondence to our letter headed address.

Background:

On 204 May 2019 Thursday at 17:45 hrs Officers from the Immigration Compliance &
Enforcement team entered the premises at Village Tandoori, 11 High Street,
Southminster, Maldon, CM0 7AA under the authority of Sec 179 of the Licensing Act
2003 as amended Sec 36 and Schedule 4 of the Immigration Act 2016 and a warrant
issued by a Magistrate.

Prindipal

Mohammed Abul Kalam Chowdhury
Associate Solicitor

Abu Ellas

This firm is authorised and tegulated by the Solicitogs Regulation Authority SRA No- 537724
We do not accept service by email.

Page 127




APPENDIX E

The Officers entered into the premise without resistance which was open that time.
The restaurant team members were working in the premise at that time and when

enquired by the officers, it was revealed that there was one male working in the

licensed premises had no right to work in the UK. For these reason, Licensing Officer
of Chelmsford & Maldon Police Station, Essex submit that our client’s premises
licence of Village Tandoori will be reviewed based on their submission that there is a
failure in promoting one of the licensing objectives, i.e., The prevention of Crime and

Disorder.

The Premise Licence holder’s Position:

Mr Rashid has obtained the licence of the premise since 2003 which is a popular and
reputed Indian Restaurant with positive customers review in the locality. He is a
person with good character with no previous conviction records and well known for
his well behaviour and professionalisin. In the premise licence there are 4 persons
working as a full time basis. The premises licence holder strictly follows all the
respective rules and regulations in the premises. Our client would like to confirm
that he has provided all the measures to maintain the all four licensing objectives for
the long tenure of 17 years and never got report of any sort of negative incident or
complain. Our client also submits that he is always aware of and has given the
highest priority to upheld the licensing objects specially to prevent the crime and

disorder as a result no major incident has happened so far in the Licensed premises.

So the recent ground for review of the Licensed Premise which is mentioned by the
Licensing Officer is not the obvious fact that cannot be rebutted.

Illegal Worker Issue:

On the day of the enquiry made by the HM Immigration Compliance & Enforcement
team in the restaurant, that particular worker was employed for 7 days on a trial
basis and as a replacement of one of the permanent employee who was sick. In the
initial interview of that person, he informed our client that he has legal status and
has permission to work in UK. Our client further asked him to provide his

2

Page 128



documentary evidence regarding his work permit which he promised to submit to
our client within a week. Unfortunately, our client trusted him in good faith. His
entire employee has legal right to work in UK and he always maintains this strictly.
This is the first time he faced this sort of issue in the 17 years of his premise’s license

which he had never anticipated and prepared for.
Licence holder’s previous recoras:

It is submitted that our client has no previous criminal record or conviction. He is
always a law abiding person with a good character. He is familiar for his well
manner, politeness and graciousness in the locality. For the last 17 years he is
running the licensed premise with good reputation and standing. Customers are
always happy with his service and care and recommend the restaurant to others.
Overall, our client has got good reputaticn for his honesty and good behaviour as a
person as well as a businessman. We are enclosing his DBS report for your
consideration.

Consequence of the revocation of the Premises licence:

Our dlient is operating this licensed premise successfully for the last 17 years without
any complain or misconduct. It is a popular restaurant in the locality with good
rapport which is providing positive impact in the economy of the society. Moreover,
there are 4 full time employees working in the restaurant whose livelihood are
mitigating by the money they eamn. The proposed revocation of the premises licence
would lead the restaurant shut down as the customers will not come to the

restaurant to eat the Indian curry without alcohol.

In the realm of Brexit effect, where the economy is already suffering, business are
shutting down and redundancy are raising swiftly, it is not. reasonable and rational
to take such measure by the authority which will compel a running business to shut
down. That will have detrimental effect towards the local economy as well as the
society. The revocation of the licence will make the restaurant employees

unemploved and their entire family will suffer and subsequently they will become

Page 129

APPENDIX E




APPENDIX E

the burden of the society. Moreover, our client who is a regular taxpayer and has
keen knowledge in restaurant business weould be forced to give up his business by
the harsh approach of the authority.

Undertaking:

Understanding the crime and disorder objective of the Licensing Act 2003, our client
acknowledge the concern and objections of the Officers of the HM Immigration
Compliance & Enforcement team regarding their discovery of disqualified persons
illegally on the premises licence and hereby remorseful for the unexpected incident.
By taking into account the incident as a first time of the whole 17 years tenure of the
licensed premises, our client submit that he should be considered exceptionally.
Moreover, our client is ready to offer an undertaking to the authority regarding the
issue and he is happy to take any relevant conditions by the licensing authority to
waive his proposed reyocation of Premises Licence.

Considering the above situations, we therefore, urge you to consider our client’s

representation positively and not to revoke his premises license.
Should you need further query, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Yours Faithfuily,
LC Sl
KC Solicitors

Enc:

Page 130




	Agenda
	5 Licensing Act 2003 - Application to Review Premises Licence - Village Tandoori, 11 High Street, Southminster, CM0 7AA
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	(1) Front Sheet
	(2) contents
	(3) Outline of Circumstances
	(4) reasons for review
	(5) Outcome sought
	(6) Immigration Offences
	(7) Steps to avoid
	(8) civil penaltys
	(9) statutory guidance
	(10) case law
	(11) Appendix A
	(12) Warrant (Redacted)
	(13) MG11 - IO HENRY (redcated).docx_Redacted
	(14) MG11 - IO WHITING (redcated).DOCX_Redacted
	(15) MG11 DERMOTT
	(16) PHOTO OF IMMIGRATION OFFENDER
	(17) referral Notice_Redacted
	(18) HO Certificate (redacted)
	(19) Employers guide to right to work checks August 2017
	(20) right to work checklist
	(21) Village Tandoori - REVIEW APP
	(22) VILLAGE TANDOORI PREMISES LICENCE

	Appendix E




